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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.
Leon Schwab
1855
35

35A, avenue J.F. Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg,
Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

03 6775 1000

BlackRock Global Investment Series -
Global Allocation Portfolio

500 8,370

500 2,005

2024
31
156.74 104.01
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BlackRock Global Investment Series - Global Allocation Portfolio

2024

500 8,370
500 2,005

2024 31
156.74 104.01

https://www.sc.mufg. jp/products/trust/index.html
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https://www.sc.mufg. jp/products/trust/index.html
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BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited
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2019 12 10
2020 15
BlackRock Fund Management
Company S.A.
2019 17
BlackRock Asset Management
Ireland Limited
2019 17
2019 17
2019 17
State Street Bank International
GmbH, Luxembourg Branch
1996 10
1997
10 13
2002 29
J.P. Morgan SE, Luxembourg
Branch
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1998 15
BlackRock Operations
(Luxembourg) S.a r.1I.
2016 18
BlackRock Investment
Management (UK) Limited
2010 13
2015 15
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1915 1990
1991 1993 12 1994 10 28 1995 21 1997
10 28 1998 18 15 2003 11 2005 2006 17
2009 30 2015 23
1915
50 7,837 2024
12.5 1,959 40,000
1990
2006 10
2024
1855 35
BlackRock Group Limited- 35A, avenue J.F. Kennedy, L-1855 40,000 100.00
Luxembourg Branch Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of
Luxembourg

Commission de
Surveillance du Secteur Financier

1134 1710
1779 1787 1984
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www . BlackRock. com
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www.blackrock.com/corporate/sustainability
https://www.blackrock.com/corporate/about-us/investment-stewardship#our-responsibility
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0.75 0.70 0.05
2024 31 2,237,257
2024 31 2,088,107

2024 31 149,150
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2024 31 26,177
2024 31 398,144

1.885
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2016 27
1.5 0.281
0.0024 0.45
5.5 124
0.20
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32 26
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2024
300,538, 569.30 101.06
0.00
3,152,634.43 1.06
297,385,934.87
46,612 100.00
2024

BlackRock Global Funds
Global Allocation Fund X
Class non-distributing
share

2,231,805.66 | 75.91 | 169,418,616.42 | 101.06 | 225,546,279.90 | 75.84

BlackRock Global Funds -
Global Allocation Fund X
Class non-distributing
share AUD hedged

3,180,241.22 15.57 | 49,504,053.31 17.74 | 56,407,589.11 | 18.97

BlackRock Global Funds -
Global Allocation Fund X
Class non-distributing
share JPY hedged

2,076,992.70 | 12.24 | 25,418,695.62 8.95| 18,584,700.29 6.25
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10
2024
MICROSOFT CORP 3.0 JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 1.0
NVIDIA CORP 2.7 BAE SYSTEMS PLC 1.0
AMAZON COM INC 1.8 ASML HOLDING NV 1.0
APPLE INC 1.8 MASTERCARD INC CLASS A 0.9
ALPHABET INC CLASS C 1.5 10 | UNITEDHEALTH GROUP INC 0.8
2024

2024
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2010 20 2016 17
2024

2015 a1 295,225.104.70 | 46,273,582,911 13.25 2,077

2016 a1 316,958,633.62 | 49,680,096,234 12.38 1,940

2017 a1 289,263,321.67 | 45,339,133,039 13.60 2,132

2018 a1 296,696,326.17 | 46,504,182,164 15.70 2,461

2015 a1 245,792,863.19 | 38,525,573,376 14.50 2,273
10

2000 a1 200,862,883.23 | 31,483,248,317 16.29 2,553
11

- a1 230,686,748.08 | 36,157,840,894 19.46 3,050
12

2005 a1 315,101,134.19 | 49,388,951,773 19.57 3,067
13

2005 a1 232,545,854 51 | 36,449,237,236 18.07 2,832

2052 224,574,787.80 | 35,199 ,852,240 19.56 3,066

2023 228.124,054.69 | 35,756,164,332 18.49 2,898

228.797,291.92 | 35.861,687,536 18.87 2,958

222.350,179.83 | 34.851,167,187 18.46 2,893

213,205,096.00 | 33,417,766,747 17.82 2,793

10 205,468,907.24 | 32,205,196,521 17.41 2.729

11 216,696,449.60 | 33,965,001,510 18.57 2,011

12 223,533,887.10 | 35,036,701,464 19.45 3,049

2024 224.574,787.80 | 35,199,852,240 19.56 3,066

227.377,379.10 | 35,639,130,400 19.97 3,130

231,424,067.50 | 36,273,408,340 20.49 3,212

222.132,916.20 | 34,817,113,285 10.92 3.122

223.094,105.10 | 34,967,770,033 20.36 3,101
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2015 31 48,452,935.06 5,039,589,776 14.81 1,540

2016 31 61,980,569.52 6,446,599,036 14.04 1,460

2017 31 80,466,681.28 8,369,339,520 15.59 1,622

2018 31 108,743,816.21 | 11,310,444,324 18.05 1,877

2019 31 111,599,069.46 | 11,607,419,215 16.56 1,722
10

2020 31 100,896,132.24 | 10,494,206,714 18.37 1,911
11

2021 31 100,599,384.67 | 10,463,342,000 21.46 2,232
12

2022 31 110,389,573.88 | 11,481,619,579 21.42 2,228
13

2023 31 82,169,918.26 8,546,493,198 19.38 2,016

14 82,395,961.53 8,570,003,959 20.56 2,138
2024

2023 80,281,833.54 8,350,113,506 19.66 2,045

82,181,223.10 8,547,669,015 20.03 2,083

80,152,172.72 8,336,627,485 19.56 2,034

77,116,865.10 8,020,925,139 18.85 1,961

10 74,710,399.80 7,770,628,683 18.39 1,913

11 80,356,066.56 8,357,834,483 19.57 2,035

12 82,465,313.48 8,577,217,255 20.45 2,127

2024 82,395,961.53 8,570,003,959 20.56 2,138

83,534,010.76 8,688,372,459 20.96 2,180

85,261,590.66 8,868,058,045 21.48 2,234

83,869,843.83 8,723,302,457 20.85 2,169

83,821,630.46 8,718,287,784 21.28 2,213
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2017 a1 698,776,280.91 100.18

2018 a1 3,782,919,157.89 113.49

2015 a1 4,071,752,805.59 102.05

10 1,950,230,774.29 111.61
2020 31 950,230,

1 2,177,118,682.41 132.21
2021 31 177,118,

12 4,808,224,321.00 132.49
2022 31 808,224,

13 3,758,712,296.65 118.23
2023 31 798,712,

14 3,115,728,701.19 120.26
2024 115,728,

2023 3,352,314,678.61 118.02

3,403, 152,699. 65 119.74

3,264,828,422.06 116.54

3,109,581,396.70 111.95

10 2,978,991,247.29 108.77

11 3,120,630,922.13 115.36

12 3,131,406,407.86 120.20

2024 3,115,728,701.19 120.26

3,066,055,683. 18 122.31

3,071,859,098.95 124.89

2,905,162,150.18 120.79

2,886,222,076.60 122.83
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3.84 6.16

6.57 5.20

9.85 11.04 0.18

15.44 15.78 13.29

7.64 8.25 10.08
10 12.34 10.93 9.37
11 19.46 16.82 18.46
12 0.57 0.19 0.21
13 7.66 9.52 10.76
14 8.25 6.09 1.72

100x%
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14,409,470 5,885,788 22,279,202
14,262,538 5,741,555 22,274,709
1,921,257 1,103,183 3,272,440
1,921,257 1,103,183 3,272,440
9,545,857 6,218,319 25,606,740
9,539,810 6,211,658 25,602,861
2,106,804 964,696 4,414,548
2,106,804 964,696 4,414,548
2,907,061 7,246,085 21,267,716
2,907,061 7,242,206 21,267,716
1,852,137 1,105,740 5,160,945
1,852,137 1,105,740 5,160,945
10,706,132 3,730,721 6,975,411
10,031,717 3,057,336 6,974,381
15,450,896 17,822,349 18,896,263
15,450,896 17,822,349 18,896,263
3,504,291 2,641,139 6,024,097
3,504,291 2,641,139 6,024,097
41,066,602 14,709,545 33,332,468
41,066,602 14,709,544 33,331,438
1,963,320 3,913,804 16,945,779
1,963,320 3,913,804 16,945,779
1,950,930 1,235,892 6,739,135
1,950,930 1,235,892 6,739,135
18,528,514 11,961,604 39,899,378
18,528,514 11,961,604 39,898,348
169,100 4,786,134 12,328,745
169,100 4,786,134 12,328,745

10 598,127 1,844,872 5,492,390
598,127 1,844,872 5,492,390
600,126 23,025,711 17,473,793
600,126 23,025,711 17,472,763
1,630,038 2,105,475 11,853,308
1,630,038 2,105,475 11,853,308
1 1,101,178 1,904,906 4,688,662
1,101,178 1,904,906 4,688,662
4,430,720 5,437,260 16,467,253
4,430,720 5,437,260 16,466,223
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6,909,046 2,659,520 16,102,834

6,909,046 2,659,520 16,102,834

12 1,401,357 935,368 5,154,651
1,401,357 935,368 5,154,651

26,783,756 6,959,731 36,291,278

26,783,756 6,959,731 36,290,248

359,303 3,595,899 12,866,238

359,303 3,595,899 12,866,238

13 101,771 1,017,368 4,239,054
101,771 1,017,368 4,239,054

2,100,195 6,601,121 31,790,352

2,100,195 6,601,121 31,789,322

266,227 1,699,232 11,433,233

266,227 1,699,232 11,433,233

14 210,800 442,535 4,007,319
210,800 442,535 4,007,319

764,789 6,647,711 25,907,431

764,789 6,646,681 25,907,431

14

2016
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100 100 100 100 0.01 100
10 0.01 10 0.01 0.01
10 10 100
12
3.00 3.00 3.00
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8.5
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3.30 3.00

10

https://www.sc.mufg. jp/products/trust/index.html

2633
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0.01

10
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0.01

10
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328

2024 31
156.74 104.01

23 103

23
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2024 31

2024 31
255,537,338 40,052,922
46,333,076 7,262,246
2(a) 301,870,414 47,315,169
2(a) 18 3
2(a) 156,707 24,562
2(a) 998, 264 156,468
2(a) 51,640 8,094
303,077,043 47,504,296
2(a) 181,377 28,429
2(a) 998,239 156,464
2(a) 157,953 24,758
(a),4’§’6’7,8 1,399,204 219,311
2,736,773 428,962
300,340,270 47,075,334

47
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2024 31

2024 31 2023 31 2022 31

300,340,270 47,075,334 319,251,840 50,039,533 434,771,829 68,146,136

19.56 3,066 18.07 2,832 19.57 3,067
20.56 2,138 19.38 2,016 21.42 2,228
120.26 118.23 132.49

42 47
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2024 31

319,251,840 50,039,533

2(¢) 5,443 853
2,237,257 350,668

2,237,257 350,668

154,523 24,220

14,462 2,267

58,255 9,131

51,787 8,117

74,575 11,689

26,177 4,103

32,955 5,165

2(c) 6,144 963
4,898,835 767,843

(4,898,835) (767,843)

2(a),2(b) 7,505,098 1,176,349
2(a),2(b) (1,422,201) (222,916)
2(d),2(e) (2,416,359) (378,740)
3,666,538 574,693

751266
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15,999,813 2,507,811
(524,701) (82,242)

2(d),2(e) (1,613) (253)
15,473,499 2,425,316

14,241,202 2,232,166

2(h) 9,069,805 1,421,601
2(h) (42,222,577) (6.617,967)
(33,152,772) (5,196, 365)

300,340,270 47,075,334
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2024 31
12,866,238 312,468 1,696,869 11,481,837
4,239,054 210,800 441,582 4,008,272
31,790,352 764,789 6,647,710 25,907,431

42 47
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BlackRock Global Funds - Global Allocation Fund X

2,331,017 Class non-distributing share 225,808,392 75.19

BlackRock Global Funds - Global Allocation Fund X
3,235,257 Class non-distributing share AUD hedged 54,756,738 18.23

BlackRock Global Funds - Global Allocation Fund X
2,288,718 Class non-distributing share JPY hedged 21,305,284 7.09
301,870,414 100.51
301,870,414 100.51
301,870,414 100.51
(1,530,144) (0.51)
300,340,270 100.00

www.blackrockinternational .com
2453
2024 31
100.51
100.51
(0.51)
100.00
42 47

781266
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2024 31

fonds commun de

2010 12 17 2010
2011
EU 2011/61
2013 12
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2024 31
402,643 0.20
2024 31 2023 10 30
1.00
B3]
23 90 15
&3]
H 15

10
15

CRNEERN
wa| ||

24
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https://www.blackrock.com/cash/en-Im/client-reporting

0.25
0.75
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2024 31
2024 31
2024 30
2024 31
.661650 .661050
.747077 . 748475
.168293 .165705
.145986 .145734
.088249 .086250
.274150 .273451
.000063 .000063
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0.006820 0.006841
0.058213 0.058222
0.748111 0.748307
0.031949 0.031949

(f

11 13 BlackRock Global Investment Series Combined
(g
2024 31
(h
(a

'

Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier
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(c
(a
0.33 0.75
(b
0.1667 1.00
(c
2023 19 10 30
1.526
2023

2023 31
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0.025

1855
49, avenue J-F Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg

2024 31

2024 31

65,591

10

2019 17
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2010 taxe d"abonnement
0.05
2010 174
0.01
2024 31
11
12
()
(i)
12
2024 31
40,000,000 2024 31
0.15
0.90
13
14

2024 31
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425,814

15

527

16
2024
2024 27
2024 31

17
2024 23
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2024 31

2023 10 30

2023 10 30
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Statement of Net Assets
as at 31 January 2024

Assats
Saemities fentioho Al ool 3000 J78 BN R0 5AT 30 56407 54 21048 201G
Linneesilisend appeociationi{deprecation) =3 705 100 46333 076 23E00AT0 (2624905
Secuilies jortioho al rsrkel valiss Hal 3447 57T TES IHAATRAT4 IR 0OF BEF 206 AB04GE 2 549128 916"
Cash &l hank 2ial 197 711957 18 B N2 355 M 1593 560 746 s
Dhier Irsyim RE ol 15 5T 5IT
Brdarasd and deadonds rocaheal i 2a) 4274 250 i e i e Dl 0 T40
Fnambealla bod neyasiinenis sok) Halk VAR SET0EAS 156 a7 SATIEIE 1 eSO OO
Rscaptealtba for Fund unils subsoribed Ha) 0TI T | 5T 315 3G A0 L]
Lt sl sl cnppesctanlicn oan
Oypeim forwaw o Fonsign coochang e rinsactions ) 51383 51.3&3
St ol araiioad valisn 403 LI L
[HIved aisels 2} =] 51,5440 51, 7Fa A1, 252 G OTE
Totol assets 4,859,102 118 03,077,043 3T ET0, 076 218304915 3913617238 Fralll
Liabsllith s
Cash owed Io bank Haj 189,357 181 3r7
Prayablo lor imvesimants purchasod Say 1400 155 54 ot 7850 438 FAZRETT 1,387 141 50
Payalde lor Fund wnls pedosimed HNal 109573 157 953 41,62
Dt orvds prvalis M 10 F32 rng L]
Lt e ] o it s a6
O bl hospadgr aschiang o I ans action s Ad) 1755 i
Swaie Al inesiiood valias 24} 2388 2588
Agcrdim sopearies mnd oifor BabiEe A BT R B,16% 40 .34 504 AL B0 T o0 5 gt
Total akdities 1,430,443, 35T 738,773 8,118,072 121,213 1401450 283 22,546
Todal net aaisis 3408 T4IEN 300,240,270 389,152,304 207,183,702 2512088 055 —

Thets Ptk Bost erairud e ining Dhe o, e Mado 1 M fuithad dotalls
= ahialion basad on avon e oot mathod . Please roor o node 2iad

Approved on behall of the Board

T3

=7 — ;;irwc r%ﬁvﬁ"

"j' (P ) o 'L___\___.-

Baap)aman Gredson Jomnne Fitzgerald
Diirector Director
Diate 23 April 2024 Date 23 Aprl 2024

The notes on pages 42 1o 47 form an integral paet of these financipl stalements.

Annual report and audited Anandal statemenis (1]
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Three Year Summary of Net Asset Values
as at 31 January 2024

Comenoy 3 Jarary 23
Global Alocation Pertfalic
Tolal nel assels U 300,380,270 399,251,840 A34.7TAR
Bl 325l vl P
A Class nor-0 snbufing us UED 19.45 1807 1a 57
A Clags non-diginboing und A0 AD 2056 19.58 242
A Class mon-dsinbitfmg und JFY S 120.29 11823 132449
Glabal Equity Inceme Penfalis
Telal net sasels UsD 369,152,304 95,074,553 V16T
Bl el vl g bl
A Class disinbutin UED 1% 42 15,79
F Ciags digd LUED 2063 1201
Income Strobegies Ferfolio
Todad net ossots usn 207,183,102 220827393 270,553,450
Ml ansal valua per
A Class distributing il LD 505 SO7 &AT
A Class distibuting unil SGD hedgad S60D 8.3 935 ([FR T
AD Class: digintuling urd (o) ™ a8s 834
B Class di sinbiafing und =D S16 508 54T
& Clags dishribud ing unit D L ans &8T5
J Class disl rbuting Ll WD 519 5 H) 53
Super Money Market Fund "
Tolal net assels uzo 2,642 088 05 1,789,350, 502 2.270,560,504
Hed asssl valug per
Commen disiribuling ung usD 1 () 1 ) § 00
Current distritading und UED 100 104 100
Instiutional | diddébiding wni UED 1 1) 1.1} 100
Warld Ineeme Portfalis™
Telal net sasels UsD e 16,522.726 2ETRENT
Mol il valug pol
A Clasis distributing wnll UED - 1048 LA RE]
A Crass diginbuting unil A1)0 A TS 2713
829

A Class distnbutin

o,
Plarkal Fund Pleass reler io Mole 2{a)

@ Tha Portfolio larminalied during the yaar, sea Mole 1 for furher dalais

ELR 213

ar Money Markel Fuersd publishes constant Ha as LEED 1 and elfactiveg 1 July 2015 i classfied as shorl 1erm Pubbe Dt Conglant Nel Assel Valus Moray

Tha Noles o0 pages &2 10 &7 Form &h integral part of T Bnanaal o elsmants

[12] BlackRock Glebal Invesiment Sories
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Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended 31 January 2024

Blackf ook Glotal
Ieresiment Glotml &l pation (Eotml Equity

Torias Combined Particlio Imcoanh Portiolia

Wot naseds of the baginming of the yoar 2474 035 004 319,251 840 98,074, 553
I aither
Bari rtoras

Bl and koan Inbaresls

B2540 THY -

EI 556513 == =

D dords {redd of wil BFlding 1255 ek EE4 084 L e

Char ncomig B4 240 — —

Tedal Insome 131,095 620 — 5358, 789

Expenses

B inforog a)

Mandgemenl 1ase 4

Disfsibutbon [oas 4

Mominisiradion foes [

Bt (g0 T

Lagal feds

Frinting and other reporing fees

Taoks 1

Coordination faas 5

Cuaposiiany (s &

Transiar agant faas

Loan comm tment foas 13

Miscolianodis foas Hal

Todal expers os befors redmb uns emsnt 20,485 414 4 458 §3s B4 3hd

Roimburgament of apanses q 21437 - —

Tolal expensos after reimbursement 20224977 4 454 435 [ S RET

Nt inwosbrent incame{delicit) 111,770 643 (4,894,535 4.T0T LS
Roakized gain on Investmens Ha) 2k} 1T02238 7,505 093 TA10458

Foclitad (less) on invesimants Ha) 2} [ 19, % 402} 1 422 201} (T E IS D)
Ml realised gaindaes) on

Folag aevended 3 lobwand lofagn @ b B Ao n. 2Hdd ek [ 1 20 aE3) {2 406 159) {724 2aa)
Swap brardadions 2(dp .18 = =

Het roalisod gainloss) for the year (TATES2E) 5 R88 i 1,183,414}
Changs in unraalised appraciallon on iresiments 4T 552 547 15 S 513 0075 565

Change in und salitod (dapradation) on nvadtm et asmaim 1624 01} L AET TR
Ml change in untealised apprecdationy depreciation) on

Forag astences ard tonwand foragn g Iraraacdions Ty, 2 (el tirm {1,603} L9 B
Swap brarsgsdong 20d) {TA4T] — —

Wt change in unrealised appreciationfideprecialbon) for the year 55234 449 15471, 499 28,508 32T

Inez rems ot Dipenroasal Im eod assots os o rosull of operations 160,528 184 14,241 202 32 142 344

Mevements bn unil capital

Ml recolpls 4% a redul of ISsue of wdls 2{) A 450, TR 461 2THABI T

Mal paymants as w resul of repurchass of units 2} {5502, 306, 147) (14 446 505)
Inerpas e Decroass) Im nol assols o o result of movermants In unit capital AT 45T 314 (33,982,770 264045265

Divciends doclaned 18 {113 278, 251) 05, VF EEE)
Hot assels af the ond of (ho year 3,408, 748 20 100,348,270 150,182,304

T Nadas o0 pass &2 10 &7 Form &h integral part of T Bnanaal o elsmants

Annual repor and audited financial stalements [13]
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Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended 31 January 2024 continued

Incoere Strabegies Super boney
Bkt Fund
ush
Net paseds ot the beginndng of the year 20827293 1,769,359, 92 16,522,738
Income
Saris; irtaras 25 &2 40 A7 —
Bored #0d loan Inberesls 16,432,965 47,123 55 =
Cevidends {nat of wilbiedding tasch = = [ W ]
Cihar Incomg - B4 MO o
Tolal incame 16403224 109,688,288 asin
Expaonses
Bl inforosl Heb — = 4 ddn
Managornent fags 4 1044175 AR
Diststbudion [ees ] 1,044 272 (3R vl
Somintsiration feas B -k F6.110
AL (2 ¥ JAZE 11,905
Logad {as B2AT4 B9438
Prirting and olhet regrorig dees S2E2G = 24TH
Tacad 10 104 297 227 858 -
Croondination feas L 51341 BB IED -]
Daposdary e B 1At 2T 2138
Transfor agent fogs R4 B 003 L]
Lewry il ol Koo 12 B0,535 i -
Nzcalan sl foss Fat] 12772 &, 008 8250
Tedal exporms s bofore redmbuns ernse 2087438 11,558, 440 83057
Rambursamant of sxpenses 4 == 156 547 86230
Total expons os after reimbursament 26T 44,399,933 ITT.ET
et inwostment Incomes{doficit) 13,525 188 8 288 333 148,25
Flaabiad gain of Mwisbs e Hal2s) 18mTN LR
Foabsed {loss) on imssiments Ha)2{p) [B6TE44T) - AEASE T
Ml roallsed gaind] oBs) on
Faraign arrendas and forward fofaign achandgs brarsclions Hdd, 2ap (R [y = CVEZIITY
Swap ransadiong 2{d} T8 = =
Het roalised gaini{loss) for tho year (6.B82.928) - {3,007 085}
Chancgs in unrsalised apprectalion on Insstmenls 14T BES - -
Chango b und aalteod [dapraed ation) of Bnvesls erls 8 466 604 — 20a3 97
Mal changs in unreaiised appredationt depredalion) on
Foraon aarendes. and torward foraign axchangs transactions )25 (F ] — 2E=8
Swap brardsdions 2[dk {TA4T)
Wet change in unrealised approchation’(deprecistion) for the yoear 10,075 054 — 208659
Increas e {Docroass) In mol assols o5 o rosull of oparations 16,718, 4540 8,288,322 #E2,155)
Movomonts in unit capital
Mol recapla as & racull of iseug of udls 2{mj 13,028 B85 4,139 176 126 4.0M
Mol parymants 38 & resull of repurdhass of undd 2{Hy (33, 725 485 G5 506 488 e (R T R ET]
Insresss{Decroans) im nved asscls ot o resull of movements in unit capital 20,703,704} TA2. 707 383 (5438, T4E)
D dends doclansd 1t (8658 251) (a8 e 122 [rrd vk}
Het assods of the ond of tho year o7 183,702 2,542,065 955 —

U Tha Portiolo Samsinaled during b yaat. Saa Hola 1 for furthat dalabs

The nolas on pages &2 1o &7 Fom an ntegral part of Tem Bnanaal o aiemans

[14] BilackRock Glebal Invesiment Sories
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Statement of Changes in Units Outstanding
for the year ended 31 January 2024

Uity cutstanding Uity oyt nding

# the haginning Units ol the end
of e ymar Fsaund ol the year

Global Aocation Perfalia
A Clazs

N 12,866,238

A Clags o 3 L ALID B0 4008272
A Class non-dig fbl = 3 L) ned THY & AT TIO 25 50743
Glabal Equity Inteme Partfalio

A Class diginsagling ued 1011, 734 285 B33

F Ciass dginbuting unil 3,571 08 3 7

Income Strabegics Portlalia

A Class diginbuling ued 0T 4T6 445, 20€
g urll G0 hedged — =
g und £9% 16 TiE
i - (58
f ] — s
il 40,708 528 47T &
Supoer Monoy Market Fund
commen desdributing undt 758 - e

1 Bod 4 43 400

1,050, 483 311 0,713,445 BT 200 724

Waorld Inceme Portfolia!™

AClass digitbuling urd BES 511 154
449,540 240
178,457 131

y famainaled during Tha year 589 Mola 1 forfur har @l als

T Nadas-on pagss &2 10 &7 Form ih nfegral part of T Bnanaal o elsmants

Annual repor and audited financial stalements [18]
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Global Allocation Portfolio

Portfolio of Investments as at 31 January 2024
Maarkat =5 af
Mot

Holding Descripion USD Assels

Colleclive Invesimenl 3¢ hemes™
Lunonmibsauing
2337 07T BlackRock Global Funds
Cibad Alfccation Fund X
Class non-distnbailing sham 725 BOB3HE 7519
325357 BlackRock Global Funds
Global Alccation Fund X
Class non-disirbuling shars
ALFD hadgod 54 756 T30 18,23
P8 116 BladiRock CGlobal Funds
Globad Afccation Fond X
Class non-distrbaling dorn

IPY Frsdcpd 21 J05, 254 7.0

I ETG A8 100 5

Total Collectton rsasbmanl Schamss 01 BF0. 484 100 51
Secagtkm portioho o marked valie A0 EF0 A 10051
Oitver Mol Liabiliies (1530, 144} (D510
Tokal Ml Assels (LISD) 300 H0EFD 100.00

Imevstment i rolabod paty fxd

The Closbal Allocation Portiolio st s a5 a “lenckr hnd” into the X Glass of
thir Cilobanl Allocahon Fund, A sif-kmd of Blackiock Global Funds. Cogias
ol Hlsi Frcesd peecannl Armaual fopoet and audfed Brancisl satomenls and
Interim ropor] ard unasd®ed fnancial stalomeants of BlackRock Global
Fimds rchsding Clobal Adlocaton Furnd X Class non-dgisbnbuiing shanm, X
Chass nof-distibid ing slsfo AUD lodged amnd ¥ Cliss imofi-dianibiting slhaie
JPY hecgod]) are amemtbalie vin wees blackrockontmaBonsd oom: or upon
el & Th roalslened offion of ElathIN ook L Chl T unds and Irom
local BlackRock invaslon servicng bram . The megisbened olfics of BlackRodk
Global Funds B oal 74 ie B Ruppelt, L-2453 Liembeoing, Gramd
Duschyy of Lusseembaonm

Sector Breakdown
as at 31 January 2024

Collaction |iveesliveil Sclwmes

Socardkes portioho ol imarkel valin
ifver Ml | iadlifios

W Pl £F W0 47 Forrm BN legnal par L of Mems 10ano sl 5T

[16]  BlackRock Global Invesiment Serles

96/266



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Organisation

BlackRock Global Investment Senes {the “Fund™) is a fonds
commun de placement totmed under the kaws of the Grand
Duchy of Luxembourg. The Fund is set up under Part 1l of the
law of 17 December 2010 relaling to underakings for collective
Investmen as amended {the 2010 Law”)y, The Fund qualihes as
an alternative mvastment fund (A7) in acoordance with
Directve 2011/61EU of the European Parliament and of the
Coundl of & June 2011 on Alternative Investment Fund
Mamagers CAIFMD™) and the Luxembowg law of 12 July

2013 on altesnative imeestment fund managers a3 amended (he
2013 Law™)

The: Management Company appointed BlackRock Asaat
Masagement Iredand Linnited (the “AIFMT) @8 the altennative
investroem fund manager The AIFM will provide and procure
the provision of investment managemem services, mduding
portbolio and sk management fundions, bor the Fund. The
AIFEM is entitled lo delegale s fundions, powers, discrelions.
duties and obligations. subjed o AIFMD mequiremens

Az al 31 January 2024, the Fund offered units in four Portlolios,
Global Aacation Porliolio, Global Equilty Income Portolio,
Incomie Strategies Portiolio, Super Money Markel Fund {each 3
Portbolio” and collectvely the Porfolios”). Each Porticlio has
dilferent investment objecives and imests in dillerent bypes of
investments.

Each Portfolio 8 a separale pool of assels and B represented
by separae units of each Portfollo which are divided into unil
classes as detalled on page 51

The dasses of units have squivalent rights in the Portiolios bul
carry different features and changing strudures, which are more
fully desaibed in the Fund's Prospedus.

Slgnificant events during the year

+ Efective 30 October 2023, the Woeld Incoms: Porliolio was
Ledmanated

= Effective 25 April 2073, Arendl & Medernach SA was
appoanted as legal adviser

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policles

The linancial statements have been prepared in acoord ance
with generally accepled acoounting principles in Luxembourg
and with the legal and requlatony requirements relating lo the
preparation of the finandal slalements as prescribed by the
Lisembourg authorities for Luembours investment companies
anid include the following slignificant aceounting policies:

(@) Valuation of Irvestments and Other Assels
The Fund's vestments and other assels are valued as lollows:
Non-Money Market Portfolios

* Term loang are nol listed on any securities exchange. In
detenmmining the Net Asset Value (TNAVT) the Portiolio
ulilises the valuations of term loans lurnished by a pricing

[42]  BlackRock Glebal Invesiment Sories

seqvice approved by the AIFM. The priceng sesvics typically
values term boans al the bid price when quotalions are
readily awallabbe. Temn oans bor which quolalions are ol
readily avallable are valued at fair marke! value on a
comsislent basks o delenmimed by the prcig senios using
pricing matrices o delermine valuations. The procedures of
the: pricing services and is evaluations are reviewed by the
Ivestment Adviser of the relevant Portiolio {the TInvestment
Advigers under the general supervision of the AIFM. The
AlFM has determined in good Faith thal the use of a pricing
segvice is a falr method of delermining the valuation of lerm
loans:

Poatlolio secnfies consisling of equilies, bonds and olher
dett instruments (olher than short-term obdigations. but
inchuding lsted tssues) may ba valued on the basis ol pricas
furnished by one of more pocing services which delermine
prices for nosmal, instiutional-size rading units of sudh
securnlies using marked information, ansactions for
comparable seourties and variows relatomships. belwean
securities that are generally recognised by instituticnal
lradders,

Peatbolio securmies thal are listed on stock echanges o
traded on other regulaled markels are valued al the last
knewen price on such ecchanges of markels as ol the cose
of the: business day nmediately preceding the valoation
date with the exceplion of Global Equity Income Portfolio fos
whitch securilies are valued al the valuation date al the lasl
kicwen patce as ol 4 00 pan. Luxermbouig e (4P

CET or, in each case, the Relevant Time"). i there are no
such sales of aparticular security, the value of such secuity
will be the kst available bid price of the Relevant Time o in
cerlan crcumstances, such portfolio seanities are valued at
the last sale price on the exchange thal 1s the primary market
for such seaurities, or the last quoted bid price for those
secuniies lor which the Over-the-Counter {"OTCT) marked
such as NASDAC, i the primary mzgkel bor sted secunlies;

Irvesztments in open-ended oollective imestment schemmes
are valued on the bass of the last avallable net assel value
of the units of such colbective investmen sdhame;

Fixed ncome secunties that are nol bsted on siock
exchanges or raded on olher regulated markets are valued
al the last available bad price or vield equivalents ol aimed
fream one or more dealers of pricig sevices. Secimies
traded in the OTC market are valued al the last avallable bad
price. In cases where securities e raded on more than one
exchangs, Lhe securilies ane valwed on the exchange
designated by of under the diredion of the AIFM as the
prirrealy imaikel. Porllolio secuiilies thal are taded both in
the: OTC marked and on 2 stock exchange are valued
acoording o the bioadest and most representalve marked,

When marked quotations are nol readily available or the
AIFM determines thal the independant marke quolation
does nol refled far marked value. the AIFM will,
accordance with applcable laws, determime a Fair rmsrkel
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

value for thad assded o lability. When delermining the prics for
such an assel or kabiflty, the AIFM may use cne or more of &
vartely of Tair valuablion methodologes (depending on lactors
Inchuding the assel type). The AIFM might, for examgle, price
the assel based on the onginal aost of the investment of it
mighl use propretary of third-paly medels. including models
that redy upon direct portfolic management picng inputs and
whach refled the skpnificance altribuled 1o the vanous fadors
beirgy considered by the AIFM when 8 values the assel
andior hability, as well &5 cerlain assumplions. The AlFM
rrighl also use prices of acdual, executed, histoncal
ransacions in the assel andior labilty (or related or
comparable assels andion labilities) a5 a basks lor valiation
or even use_ where appropiiale, an appralsal by a third party
exprerienced in the valuation of siilar assels and/fon
liabdliies.

As al 31 January 2024, the adjusted falr value applied (o corlain
seciies s disdosed in the lable below

30 aERas 020

Incoime Slrmbeghes Porfolo

Plessse: peder to the Portfolio ol Invesiments section bor further
detalls of the secunties.

World Income Portfolio

As al 31 January 2024, the Wordd Income Porifclio (lerminated
o 30 Ocober 2023) held open illiquid positions, which together
accounted for less than 1.00% of the net assel value of the
Porlfolio as al the kast Valuation Point pior o Fund's date of
termination. i the dliquid securities are subsequently disposed
of or avalue is realised. this will be distributed to the
shareholders of the respeciive Funds proporlicnate lo esach
shareholbders holding in the Fund as al the date of tlermination,

Supar Money Market Fund

= The AIFM has established procedwes designed 1o stabilise, o
The extent reasonabdy possibde and in accordance with the
honey Market Funds Reguliabion {lhe "MMFER). the Super
Money Markel Fund's price per unil a5 cosmputed for the
purpose of subscriptions and redempions al USD 1 (the
“rovstant NAVTY . NAY 1S rounded 1o the neansst pes centade
pednt. o ils equivalent in currency terms:

= The Portfolio's underlying securities and money market
instruments are valued based upon their amorlised cost This
inwolves valumg an instrument al ils cost and theraafier
assuming a conslant amorbisation lo malunly of any discount
of premiuin, regardless of the inpad of fucteating interest
rales on the marked value of the instruments. While this
method provides certamnty in valualion, It may result in penods
duning which value_ as delermined by amorised cosl, is
higher or lewer than the price the Super Money Market Fured
woulkd receie if it sold the instrurment ;

* The Portfolio is dassified as a short term Public Debd CNAY
MMF and complies with the requirements under MMFR. As a
resull of this, the AIFM has introduced additional prudent and
ngorous iquidity managament proceduras lo ensure
compliance with any liquidity thresholds applicable 1o the
Poortholic:;

To assess whether the assets of the Portfolio aré sulliciently
liquid b meed reasonatdy loresecabde redemplions and nol
fowce assels from being kquidated a1 disoounted prices, the
valatility of the Portiolio’s assets is frequently monitored. The
AIFM may also apply one or more of Lhe following messures:

= imposing bquidty fees on redemptions thal adequately
reflect the cost o the Portiolio of achieving quedity and
ensure thal the wnitholders who remain in the relevant
Porttolio are not unfairly disadvaniaged when olher unit
holders redesm thelr units duing e period,

i, within a perod of 90 days, the lotal duration of
suspensions excesds 15 days, the Super Money Market
Fund shall aulomatically cease ko be a short-lesm Public
Dbt CNAY MMF and the AIFM shall nform unitholders of
ihis facl;

alter the Board of Diredctors of (he Management Cormpany
of the Portfolio has determined its course of adion with
regard to above apoinls, it shall premply provide details of
ils decigion 1o the competent authority of the Portiolio:

lirersing redamplion gates that limBl the smadnt of waits 1o
ez resdessmed on any one working day o @ mesdmun of
100 of the units of the Postlolio lor aiy pefiod up 1o

15 working days;

= Inpersing a suspension of redemplions lor amy penod o up
1o 15 working days, of

= takireg no imimediate adion other than fulflling the obligaton
laid dovan in Articke: 24 (2} of the MMFR.

The Por tlolio caloulates & shadow NAY whereby umde bying
securitbes and money market ingliuments are valued based
Upsn @ rreed K-Lo-manked pce. In compliance with MMFR
respuiremnents, the diffesence between the constant NAY pes
unit and the NAY per unit calculated wsing mank-to-merked is
rmondtored and published daily on the websilte of the MMF:
hitps: iwww blackrock comdcashiendmiclient 4 eporting

All Portfollos
= Cash is valued &l its nomenal arnount

= Repurchase agreements and revesse repurchase agreements
are: valued at cost plus sociued interest. Recevable and
payable balances ielaled 16 fepurchase aqreemens and
rewerse repurchase agrecments are induded in the Staterment
of Mat Assels respedively unded the captions "Recetvable bor
investmemts sold” and Payable for invesiments purchased”.
The accrued interest from reverse repurchase agresments s
inchaded in the Salement of Nel Asseds under the caption
“Interest and dividends recefvable™

= Liquid asgels such as money mc kel nstrunwents are valued
ot an Aot lised oos basis;

Annual report and audited financial statoments  [43]
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Agsets which indude, in particular, inferest and dividends
recevable, receivable for investments sobd and recetvable for
Furd units subsoribed are valued al nominal value,

Liatdlities which indude, in particular, payable bor investments
purchased . payable lor Fuind unils redesmed, merest and
dividends payalbde are valued at nominal valus,

The inandal stalemems have been prepared on agoing
concem basis of acoounting, aocep for the World Incoms
Poriiclio, which was pul inlo termination.

{b) Realsed gains and losses on Invesiments

Realised gaing and losses on sales of vestinents heve been
determined on the basis of the average cost mathod

(e} InoomeExpense from Investments

The Fuind takes credit for income from its investments on the
forlieryirny basis:

Interas] income 15 accmed dally and includes the amontisation
on a straghl-Bne basis of premomes and accrelion of
discounts;

bank interest s recognised en an accuals basis and incudes
interest income from reverse repurchass aresments:

dividend oo is accued on the ecdividend date and is
ghown nel of wilkholdmng Lax:

incoane from reverse repurchase ransacions iz induded in
ihe Statemen of Oparations under the caplion "Bank
Il esrest”

= an imerest rale ditferential CIRDT) ks the difference in inlerest
rales bedween two similar interest beaning securities
which arises from the currency hedging process eq. if the
1 month interest rate on LSO s 0.25% and on AUDNL s 1%,
then the implied IR0 s 0, 75%, Traders in the foreign
eoechang e mad kel use IRD's when poicing forward exchangs
rates, IRDYs can be positve, nil or negative, Indusion of [RD's
in dividends may constilule a payment irom capdlal in some
jurisdictions |REY is recorded a5 miscellaneous fees i the
Statement of Operations and Changes in Nel Assels.

{d) Finandial Destvalive Insliuments

Dusing the year the Fund has entered into & number of forward
forekan exchange ransactions and lulures conliacks. Open
futures contracts are valued al the fair rmaekel value o close the
conracts on the accounting date. Surpleses deficils arsing from
these and closed unsetlled conbracts are taken to unrealised
appredalion/{deprecation) and are induded under assels or
liabilittes {as approprate) in the Statement of Nel Assets. The
nel change in unrealised appedation of depreciation and the
nel realized gains of keses on sellement o closing
tramsactions of forward foreign exchange ransactions and
futures contracts are presented in the Stalament of Operalions
and Changes in Net Assels,

Dung the year, the Fund has entered inlo swap ransacions 1o
esxcchandge the relurn gensrated by one mstrument for the retum
generated by anolher investment. The Fund can wrile credi
defaull swaps ("CDET and purchase COS When the Fund
wriles andior purchases a CDS, aseries of premiums is paid o

[44]  BlackRock Glebal Invesiment Series

of patd by the Fund, in return for a payment contingent on a
credit event {predefined in the agreement). The premivms are
inchuded in the cost of COS Where possible, swaps are marked
ter markel based upen datly prices obtained om thied party
pricing agents and verilad agains the aclual markel makes
Where such quolalions are nol avallable swaps are priced
based upon daly quotations from the med kel maker In both
cases changes in quolations are recorded as nel change in
unrealised appredation or depredation in the Statement of
Operalions and Changes in Ned Assels. Med realised gains o
losses on malwity or lermination of the swaps and the iInlerest
earmed in ralalion o the swaps are presented in the Stalement
of Operalions and Changes in Net Assets.

Each Portbolico may sell call options and purchase put oplions on
stock indices 1o seek 1o hedge portfolio secunes againsd the
impadt of anticipated general price declines in equity markets of
specilic industry sedors thereof, Options on ndices are similar
1o oplons on securithes excepl thal on exerdse o assknment,
the parties 1o the conlrad pay of recelve an amount of cash
equal to the diff erence betwesn the dosing value of the indeoe
and the exercige price of the oplion limes 3 specified multiple
The effectivencss of a hedge employing stock indesx options will
depend pimanily on the degres of correlation belween
rcvemnents in the value of the index undeslying the oplion and
in the portion of the postfolio being hedged . Armong other
ladors, ihe degree of corelalion with resped to convertible
securities will be affected by the degrees o which the marke
value of porifolio securiiles is alinbutable o ther conversion
value The nel change in umwealised apprecialion of depreciation
and the pet realised galng of osses on explialion of cloging
wansacdions of opions are presented in the Statement of
Operations and Changes in Nel Assels

(&) Foreign Exchange

The costof investments in currencies olher than the currency of
dencmination of the respedive Fortfolio has besn translated al
the: rates of eachange mling af ihe time of purchase Marke
vaue of invesiments and other assels m currencees other than
Uhe cureney of demormimation of he respective Portiolio have
been translated @ the exchange rate prevalling @ the Portiolios
valualion point in Luxembourg a8 at 31 January 2024 The net
change in v eslised apprecialion or depreciation and the net
realised gains of losses on disposal of seltlement of other
assels or habdliltes in currencies other than the anrency of
dencrmination of the respedive Portiolio are presented in the
Statement of Operations and Changes in Nel Assels.

oo and expenses in aunrencies ofher than the carrendcy of
dencmination of the respedive Fortfolio have been translated al
the rates of exchange prevaling on an sadion date

Differant exchange rates are resubing from the pridng malrx
and different valuation points between the different Porifolios. In
the bedow table, the 4PM CET exchange rates on 31 January
2024 are presented bor Global Allocation Por tfolio and Global

E quity Income Portfolo. the SPM CET exchange rales on

S0 January 2024 are presented for Income Strategies Portfolio
and Supsr Money Market Fund,

Thee lodlowing exchamge rales were used o Uanskate the
invesimenis and olher assels and olher lakdlities for all
Potiolios denominated in currencies olhes than the base
currency of the respedive Portlolio as at 31 January 2004

99/266



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Notes to the Financial Statements continued
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(I} Combined Financial Stalements

The Combined Financial Stalements of the Fund are expressed
in LSO and mclude the tolal of the finandal stalements of the
different Por ffolios

{0} Deferred Organisational Expenses

Deferred organtsalional expenses a e capilalised and are

amey ised on a straighi-line basis over a five year pesiod. As al
3 January 2024, all Poutfolios had fully amortised their deferred
organisational expenses

() Irvcssine Equsdisaticn

Each Porlfolio follows the accounting pradice of equalisation (o
preseent the undistiibated inoome per unit from fluctuating solehy
by remson of subscriptions and redemplicns of s umls. This iz
accomplished by mamtaining an equalisation account for the
relevanl Portfolio. The equalisation account is aedited wilth that
periion of the procesds of subscribed units representing the net
undistnbuted ncome per unit of those units, and is debited wilth
thad portion of any redermplion paymenl representing el
undistributed income per unit of the redecsmed units. A portion
of the dividends dedared by a Porticlio may consisl of amounts
presiously crediled 1o the equalisation account. The yield
reporied lo mvestons will ndude amounts paid from net income
a5 well as any amount pald from the equalisation accounl

The Income Equalisation is induded in the Moverments in unit
capital in the Slatemsnt of Operations and Changes in Nel
Asgels

3. Management Company and Investment Advisers
{a) Management Company

BlackRock Fund Manragement Compay SA is the
Management Company of the Fund. Furssant o the
Management Regulations, the Management Company has
agreed to manage the Fund's Portiolios for the exdlusive
acoount of the relevant Unitholders. The Depositary and sudh
olher agents as appropriate. induding Distnibutors of the Fund’s
Uinéis in and culside Japan are appeinted by the Management
Company. The Management Company has deegated the
appodntment of Distribanors. (o the Principal Distnbator

BlackRock Fund Mansagemenl Company S A is a wholly owned
subsidiary within the BlackRock Groap and is regulated by the
Commission de Surveillance du Secleur Financier ("CS3F")

(b) AIFM

The Managemenl Company has appointed BlackRock Assel
Managemenl raland Limited as the allernative investmeant fund
manager o providao and procure the provision of imvestment
ranagenenl seivices, Induding porticio and nsk rmansagement
fursctions, for the: Fund within the: meaning of the AFMD. The
AIFM is entitled 1o dedegate i fundions, powers, discrellons,
duties and obligations, subjed 1o AIFMD requirements.

The AIFM 15 a wholly cwnied subsidiary within the BlackRock
Group and is authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland

Theix AIFM 13 pald oul of the management fee due o the
Management Company, as oullined in Noie 4

(e} Investment Advisers

Subged o the overall responsibility of the AIFM, each of the
Pottfolios receives iivestiment advisony services from the
brvesstinent Advisers

It nd Adviser

{Gotdl Alcation Porfolo
Gabal Equity ncome Poetl ol
zome Srafeges Porfolo
Super Money harkel Fund

EsachRock Japan Co, Lid

BlackFock Irest merl Managemend (UK Limfdad
BlachFtock Fmnancal Mansgement, nc

Etackfock Firancal Mansgemend, Inc

The Iwvestment Advisers form parl of the BlackRock Group

The Investment Advisers ase each paid out of the meanagerment
fee due ko lhe Management Company, as cutlined in Nole 4

4. Management and Distribution Fees

(a) Managemenl lees

Dumingg the yvear, the Fund pald management lees (o the
Management Company.

The level of managemem fee varies from 0.33% 1o 0.75% per
annum of the NAY, with the exceplion of Class F units, which do
nol pegy @ manadement faa bul rather afee o the Investrmant
Adviser or alliliales under a separala aqreament, The level of
ren agement fee vanes according o which Poriiolio and unil
class the investor buys. These fees acorue daly, are based on
the: NAY of the rebevant Portiolio and are pald monthly, The
Fund's AlFM and Ivestment Adviser fees e bome by the
Managenwnt Company and paid through the managemen e,

{b) Distributicon fees

The: Managemen Company has also entered into a Distribution
Agreerment wilh BElackRock Investimen! Managermsnl

(UK} Limdled {the "Principal Disinbutor”). The Princpal
Distritator may condude contraciual arrandgements with cornlain
Distribators for the distribution of units outside the LS such as
the Japanese Distibutors {as disclosed on pages 3 o0 4)

The leved of distribastion fee vagies from O AGE67% to 1.00% per
annum ol the MAY, with the exception of Classes AD units, D
units. F units, Institutional | unis, which do not pay a distnbution
fee The level of disinbution fee vanes according to which
Portiolio and unit dass the investor buys. These fees acrue
dally, are based on the NAY of the rdevant Portlolio and are
paicl quartely

Annual report and audited financial stalements  [45)
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Tha: manzgement and distribution lees per unil dass for each
Pestiolio are disclosed in dedail in the Fund's Prospecius

(e} Subskdylcap

Frewn 19 Jume (o 30 Octobes 2023, there had been a
subsidy/cap on all expenses in place for the World Income
Pestiodio. The level of the subsidyicap iz 1.526%6 per annum of
the MAW

Since 1 Februzry 2023, there had been a BlackRock Oparaiions
(Luxembourg) Sa rl. (BROL") fes wabver in place for the Super
Mesiey Marked Fund's Cormmon, Current and Insiiulionsl | units
The lee waiver s have been stopped on 31 May 2003

5. Coordination Fees

The Managament Company has antered inlo an agresment with
BROL pursuant 1o which BROL, under the direction of the Board
of Direclers of the Management Company, provides. cerlain
corporate and adminkstrative coordination senices on behall of
the Fund

The coordination fes rate is 0.025% of the average dally NAY of
the Fund {excluding Class F units), per annum

6. Administration Fees

The Management Company has appointed State Strest Bank
International GabH, Litemboiing Branch, 49_ avenue JF
Kemrnedy, L-1855 Luxembourg, as the Fund's Administrative
Agent in Luxembourg 1o assisl the Managemenl Company al its
prineipal office in Luxernbowng with general sdministralive Lasks
pursusnt o the Administration Agreement, 3gains changing
usual fees for these services.

7. Audit Fees
Dedailed bekow are the fees paid (o Dedodtte Audit 5.4 ol for the
year ended 31 January 2024

A3 and audd relabed sensices faadiding AT 8550
blon-audt senices -

8. Depositary Fees

T hex Management Company has entered inlo the Depositary
Agreement with the Depositary, Stale Streel Bank International
GmbH, Lugemboung Brandh. Thig agreement was amendied
effedive 17 January 2019 in ne with the appointrment of the
AlFM,

The Depositary Agreement provides that all securities and cash
of the Fund, other than cash held in rading acoounts of hald in
any operalting accounis for expensas or dividend disbursement
acoounts (which may be maintained al other banks), ane to be
held by o to the coder ol the Depasitary provided that the
Management Company may place cash in overnight call
accounts or on lerm deposit with olher banks apgeoved by the
Deposilary, who shall continue 1o supervise such funds. The
Depasitary s responsible for the collection of principal and
income en, and the payment for and collechon of proceeds of
socuiies boughl and sold for the Fund. Inline with the
compliance of the AlFM and the Fund's compliance with AIFMD,
the Depositany's role pursuant to AIFME enhances Linghold er
pratecton and ncludes the responsibility 1o safekeap the assels
of the Fund and hold in custody all inanaal mstruments, cash
and other assels of the Fund {the “Safekeeping Fundtion™)

[46]  BlackRock Glebal Invesiment Series

Thex Depositary charges the Fund lees bor these serices in
accordance with s usual rates expressed as a fracdion of a
percentage per annum of the nel assels of the Fund. The
Dieposiizry may appoind one of more cosrespondent banks, and
it is expected thal the Depositary relains a correspondent bank
in the United States, whose lees shall be borne by the Fund. As
part of its Salekeeping fundion, the Deposfary 1s latde o the
Fumd for the loss of linandal instruments which are held o

custody

9. Transactions with Related Parties

The ultimete holding company of the Management Comipany,
the Principad Distributor, the AIFM, the vestment Manages and
the: Investment Advizers is BlackRock, Inc., a company
incorporated in Dedaware, USA,

Dumingg the year there have been no significant ransactions
which were outside the ordinary course of business or which
ware nol on normal aormemencial e s,

10. Taxes

Under present Luxembourg law and practice, the Fund s not
Il b0 amy Lusesnboung of dieary incom: of capllal galng ax,
no ane dividends pald by the Fund subject to any Luxenmbourg
withhwolding L. However the Fund is subjsct 1o 3 subscoriplion
tas { Taoce o abonnement) of 0.06% per annum kevied on the
MNAY of sach Portholio sl the lasl day of each cdendae quarter,
in acoordanoe with the 200 0 Law, excepl in resped of Super
Meney Marked Fund as well a3 in respecd of the Pertfolios o
unit classes reserved for instilutional imeestons within the
rmeaning of Artiche 174 of the 2010 Law, on which a reduced tae
of 0.01% per annum s kevied

For ihe year ended 31 January 2024, Global Allocation Pertlolio
has ol paid Lusembourg faxes, as no subsoaiption G is pad
on ihe assels held by ihe Porlfolio in other underalangs for
collective Investment already subject to thal lax in Luxemboung.

Unider applicable forekgn tax ks, withholding taes may be
imposed on inlerest, dvdends and capital gams al vaious
rales,

11. Dividends

Super Money Market Fund

The net income {i.e., accrued interest income net of accrued
expienses) s dedared @ a dvidend on each valuation date on
all units oulsianding on thal day 1o the Unitholders of recosd
irmmvediabely poor 1o the daily determination of NAY per unil,
prevaded abaays that units shall be entitled to a dividend only
frean the: day on which their subscription is settled prios 1o 12PM
Luxembourg tirne and thal units redeemed shall nol be entilled
by rezcedve (e dally dhvadend dedared on the setifement day of
thesr redemplion

Hon-Money Market Partfollos

Thez net income of the relevant other Portfolios consists of

{1 nterest socmied, discoum eamed (nduding both ariginal
isgue and mearked discount) o other income eamed, (i) less the
edimated expenses of the Portfolio (incuding management
fees). In resped of each dividend declared, the Board of
Direscdews ol the Managermsenl Company ey determine if, and
by whal extent, such dividend is 1o be paid out of undistributed
nel ivestrment noonee, réalised and unrealised capital gains.
respedialy ncreased or decreased by nel equalisalion aaedils
or debals
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

12. Credit Facllity

As al 31 January 2024, Income Strategles Porifolio was entitled
1o & credit Faclity of LISD 40,000 000 from Stale Streel Bank
and Trust Company. No portion of the aedit Facility was used
during the year ended 31 January 2024

A lnan commitmen fee s charged on a daily basts i relation 1o
this credit Faality which 1s included in the Sialament of
Operations and Changes in Ned Assets. The loan commilment
fee consists of 015% charged on the unusaed portion of the
cradil Facilily and the Federal Funds Effedive Rate of the
Uverndghd Bank Funding Rate (depending on which is aghes) +
0. 90% margn spread on the used porticn of the aedil Facilily

The commitmend fee is disclosed in the Statemeant of
Crperations under the caplion Loan commiment fees”

13. Financial Derlvative Instruments and Efficlent Portfolio
Management Techniques

Each of the Portlolios may use derivatives 1o hedge markst and
currency nsk, and for the purposes of efficient portfolio
rrznacgerment

The use of derivalives may expose the Forifolios to a higher
deqres of nsk. In particular. dervative contrads can be highly
volatile, and the amount of mitial margin is generally smeall
reslative 1o thee s ol the ontrad so that transadions ane
geared . A relatively small markel movernent may have a
petentially larger impad on derivatives than on standard bonds
o equilles,

Prlesase reler to the Portlolio of Investments section bor more
details

14, Transaction costs

In order o achieve ils Invesimenl objecive, a Portiolio will Incur
Iranaaciions cosls in refation (o trading adivity on s Portiolio of
Invesiments, Disclosed in the tabla below are separately
identifiable iransacion costs incurred by each Portfolio for the
yvear endad 31 January 2024, Thaese include comrmission cosis,
setllement fees and broker lees.

Peatlpbas CCY  Tesnametin tosls
ol Aliazation Podflioke LISE —
Ghotad Equity Incoms Posticho 5] a4
I ofmd Straligeen Podlolio 1]
Supar Moowy Markel Fund 53]

Trammction st

Portfolian ooy

World Income Portfobo ush -

Mol all ransaction cosls are separalely ientifiable. For swaps,
forwas d foresgn axchange iransadions, fulwes conlracts,
oplions and swaplions, ransaction costs are incuded in the
purchase and sales price of the vestment. Whilst nol
separately identifiable thege Iransaction oosis are caplured
within the peformance of each Portlolo. Markel impad costs
are nod separalely identifiable and are theredore also nol
disclosesd in the abows: Labla

15. Amounts due fromito broker

The Porllolios trade desvalives with a range of counlerpanies.
The coumerpanies 1o forward foreign exchange transactions
aid svap ransacions ane shown in the Portlolio of
Ivesiments.

Cash oollateral is pald o recerved on swaps 1o cover any
exposure by the coumerpany to the Fund or by the Fund 1o the
connierparly.

Due frormio Broker on the Salement of Mel Assats consists of
cash oollateral and mergin pakdi ecatved [om the Fund's
clearing trokers and various counlerparties

Futiss Contmch
dug 1o brokier

Fushirs Cantmects

CCY dhse: friom b el

= s

rcomé Sirabeges Porfiolo

16. Subsequent events
Effedive 2 February 20024, Geoffrey Raddiffe resigned as
Diredor of the Board of the Managemenl Company

Effedive 27 F ebvuzry 2024, Benjamin Gregson was appoinlad
as a Direclor of the Board of the Management Company.

Theire haws Dz o cther events subsequent to the Anandal
yvear end, and up lo the date of the approval of the financal
statements. which in the opinion of the Board of Diredors of the
Management Company may have had a material impact on the
finanacal stadements for the inandal year ended 31 lanuary
2064

17. Approval date

The inancial siatements were approved by the Board of
Directors of the Management Cormpany on 23 Apil 2024

Annual report and audited financial statoments  [47]
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Appendix | — Unit Classes (Unaudited)

Unit Classes In lssue & Class
As at 31 January 2024, the Fund offers the following umit Ct Claas daint
clagses Common Units

Common distribu

= L it lr
In';! rlullc-nal 1 l._r-m«.

al | deslribuling unilin A5

Unit Classes Launched
Thera were no unit dasses launched during the year

Unit Classes Closed

Werhd Are

Annual report and audited financial stalements [51]
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43

2023 31
2023 31
289,588,544 45,390,108
30,857,964 4,836,677
2(a) 320,446,508 50,226,786
2(a) 22 3
2(a) 182,164 28,552
2(a) 20,320 3,185
2(a) 79,152 12,406
320,728,166 50,270,933
2(a) 693,141 108,643
2(a) 20,320 3,185
2(a) 262,092 41,080
2
(2).4.5.6.,7.8 500,773 78,491
1,476,326 231,399
319,251,840 50,039,533
48
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2023 31

2023 31 2022 31 2021 31

319,251,840 50,039,533 434,771,829 68,146,136 328,821,617 51,539,500

18.07 2,832 19.57 3,067 19.46 3,050
19.38 2,016 21.42 2,228 21.46 2,232
118.23 132.49 132.21

43 48
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2023 31

434,771,829 68,146,136
2(¢) 1,455 228
2,618,775 410,467

2,618,775 410,467

173,200 27,147

11,703 1,834

42,259 6,624

62,594 9,811

87,292 13,682

32,380 5,075

20,387 3,195

2(c) 10,159 1,592
5,678,979 890,123

(5.678,979) (890,123)

2(a),2(b) 11,902,118 1,865,538
2(a),2(b) (1,497,695) (234,749)
2(d),2(e) (2,609,199) (408,966)
7,795,224 1,221,823
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43

48

(37,426,110)
(6,430, 316)

(5.866,168)
(1,007,888)

2(d),2(e) 1,547 242
(43,854,879) (6,873,814)

(41,738,634) (6,542,113)

2(h) 10,310,756 1,616,108
2(h) (84,092,111) (13,180,597)

107/266

(73,781,355)

319,251,840

(11,564,490)

50,039,533




EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 31
16,102,834 359,303 3,595,899 12,866,238
5,154,651 101,771 1,017,368 4,239,054
36,291,278 2,100,195 6,601,121 31,790,352

43 48
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31

fonds commun de

2010 12 17 2010
2011
EU 2011/61
2013 12
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2023 31

18,842 0.01

@
@

@
Exe

90 15

EIS
=X

@
@

15
10
15

ENEEN
EX T

24

https://www.blackrock.com/cash/en-Im/client-reporting
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2023 31
2023 31
2023 30
2023 31
0.702750 0.708150
0.745990 0.749597
1.083776 1.083424

0.145864 0.146127
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1.085049 1.087050
1.231800 1.238100
0.000067 0.000067
0.007705 0.007672
0.053312 0.053268
0.095345 0.096429
0.760312 0.761644
0.033306 0.033212

(f

11 13 BlackRock Global Investment Series Combined
(g
2023 31
(h
(i
2023 31 107,890
(a

Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier
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(b
(c
(a
0.33 0.75
(b
0.1667 1.00
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2020 30

2022

0.025

1855
49 49, avenue J-F Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg

2023 31

2023 31

64,500

2019 17

116/266



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

2010 taxe d"abonnement
0.05
2010 174
0.01
2023 31

11

12
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(1)
(i)
12
2023 31
40,000,000 2023 31
0.15
0.90
13
14
2023 31

65,297

743
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15

16
2023 31

17
2023 25
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2023 31
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Statement of Net Assets
as at 31 January 2023

o aba | Equity Insamn

Imime Stmbegies Super Money o | e corer
Portfoko Portialia Barket Fund Portiola

50 WED LED =D

Astgds

Eecaption portiolio al eogk 257 [T 553 | 776 48K 5T

Unraakeed approcationdepraaalion)

rithes portiolio at moarke valisg Fah] 215905 BT 1 TTE 485 55 18 B12 £00

1 gk Hal a2 isel 275 s
fram brokar is = = = 2
nieragt and diidandy recclvablo — & ¥ &Y £ 25T
Smenig xobd § 2 . 1 0 5 ) —
vl s sustrEcribied 2ay H 144 000 14 239

Inraakesd e racatic
Cpan Fonwand foregn sochangs inansmslons Hdy i e | —_ - Z,121 = =
Swaps 2 markel valag 1 B ) = T 1,198 — =
2Ny 355 e T#.153 61 505 EE T gy =Rk

Todal assals 3450 622 470 20,728,188 101080593 228271608 2.TASTEE TO4 16, 754 BED

Liabilities

Cash awied 16 bark

arrabie for urfunded loan
Payabla o Wvadiino 8 purchased 3 297

Payabie for F

FElE redaam ad

CbAdends et s

ko on

sl acdvangs hrarsedions T, 08T
Swapd a1 markel vaian & 47T
Aesrued spandas and olhad Rabdiios 500 TTR B3 486 418 879 2115 318 B TS

Tolal Hobilitios 1,038,566, 486 1,476 336 &,005 980 4445018 1,016,427 202 232163
Tolal ned pesels 2,424,036,004 9251840 RE0TASE  T20EIT.IDI 1 TERIE.IN2 16,503,726

1 b Disa o0 RMOTIed ool maiod Piekss teario nole 2(i)

Approved on bahalt of the Board

Data 25 May 2023

T rebars o paagee s &3 40 38 Forrn wn indeg ral part of Feee Bnarcal o asmants

Annual repord and audited financial stalemeants [11]
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Three Year Summary of Net Asset Values
as at 31 January 2023

Comenoy 3 Sy 22 H Jammiry 2021
Global Alocation Pertfalic
Tolal nel assels U 310,281,540 434771800 26821817
Bl 325l vl P
A Clats om0 Snboing sl LD 18.07 1maY 1248
A Clags non-diginboing und A0 AD 19.38 142 2045
A Class mon-dsinbitfmg und JFY S 118.2] 13244 12

Glabal Equity Inceme Penfalis
Tedal net assols UED 05.074.883 CAREER k] #0.700.31%
Bl el vl g bl

A Class disinkl LD} 1578 1702 548
F Class disd =D 1904 2018 L]
Incoma Strotegies Fortholia
Todad net ossots usn 220,827,203 270,583,400 261,564,877
Ml ansal valua per
A Class distributing il LD 507 S547 31
A Class distibuting unil SGD hedgad S60D 835 1014 1]
AD Class: digintuling urd (o) 865 B34 949
B Class di sinbiafing und s 506 SAT 555
& Clags dishribud ing unit LD 8 05 AT Bl e
J Class dish ributing wne ED 5 (H) = 38 553
Super Money Market Fund "
Tolal net assels uzo 1,780, 350,502 2270580504 2ATHARTANT
Ml appsl valiue par
Commen disiribuling ung usD 1 () 1 ) § 00
Current distritading und UED 100 104 100
Instiutional | diddébiding wni UED 1 1) 1.1} 100

Warld Inceme Portfalia
Todal net assote usn 16,552,128 2E, 75T 20,516,457
Mol el valug pol

A Class distnbuting und UED 1048 1118 155
A Chags diginbiding unil A0 AUD 8T ars VAT
A Class disinbating undl EUR ELR /.29 513 a8

O Sogeaet kol WMoY iyl gty P b0 PR v LIS 0 ] it 1 iy 2010 B COMESTIe] i Y b Probiies Dol it hiel & et Villsh ol It PR Placinsh il i
L

Tha Nodes o0 pagss £3 10 88 Torm &h integral part of T Bnanaal o elsmants

[12] BlackRock Glotal Invesiment Series
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Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

for the year ended 31 January 2023

BlackR ook Glotal
Ieresiment

Torias Combined

Glotml &l pation
Partielio

Globml Equity
Imcoanh Portiolia

Wot naseds of the baginming of the yoar 3,102 364 582 434,771 429 1,673,623
I aither

Barik rforas! 19,944 564 pi =
Bl &nd loan Inbaresls 1 593241 - -
DA deride (ral of willbelding 12 Hel 2509 380 (NI R
Monagemant fos rebate 4 1 RS — —
CANar inem 26554 — -
Tolal Income 53087842 - 1885471
Expensos

Band: infaras! S 253
Harsgoment o 4 195 850
Cisisbution faas 4 EEEE ]
Actwinigtralion leas B &1 858
Audd leas T 18,784
Lagal T B0
Preting e of il Taarimg o SE0a7T
Taoas 14 2ETE
Coordm ation [eas 5 B0a

Dpoafary {abl

Translar agent foos ¢,

Loan SommEmand foog = o

Shac Rane g5 e el 6 is% e
el oxpors o bef ore redmburs semant 578079
4 o

Fabmbursament of sqeensas

Total axpo il b aftof roimbursamnt

LETEAT

Nt inwestment incomed{deficil)

{5,878,97%)

Piciisad galn on inveiimonts
Rleabsed (0ss) on Fiments
Mol Paliged galnilass) o

23, 245327
7

1 02, 148
[1 457 BS

Fubure condracia 2(dp 1] = =

Foragn currencias. and forwand foragn aochangs reneactions T2 e} 4 161 583) [ o 1) (2 4BEE )
Swap brardadiond 2k (8 ERT)

Optiors corfrads 3 i) - L.

Mot roalisod gaini{loss) far this yoar

1048029

775,20

1290307

Charsge i undsalised apprecialion of Inoaimaents

Chariga in unrealised (depradation) on Irasdm anls

Ml changs in unrgeased spprecatont dapnetalion) on
Foragn astences ard forwand fofegn i Do b
Swap transpdions

(45 BIEATS

bl m 5}

{18 2635823

(122481)

14 244

[3T.425, 110)

(430 298]

1,547

(4,639 455)
g 423y

B26

et change in unrealised appreciation(deprecision) for the year

{64,011, T42)

(43, 5548,47%)

(5,173,265

Increasei{Decreans) in mol assole s a rosall of sparations

(26,035.85)

(41,738,534

{3, 642,096}

Mevemants B unit capital

5 @ rasul of issug of urils 2R} 2T 004 442 23 255 0%
Ml paymants a5 8 nesul of repurchass of unis (b 13,553 47T, 125 L1410 eSS
I P b Dcroase) Im el assots o8 & resall of movements in unit capital (B9, 112.881) (73,781,358 11,544,751
Devidands doclared 11 {41, T8, XF3) o B T25)

Mot nsaods of the ond of T year

2,424,038, 004

140,254 840

98,074,553

T Ndas -0 pagess £3 10 48 Torm &6 integral part of T Bnanaal o elsmants
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Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended 31 January 2023 continued

Incoere Strabegies Super boney
Bkt Fund
ush
Nt asadds o the beginming of Bhe yoear ETREE.499 $AT0, 550, W ARTERIIT
Income
Blari; intoras 4332 16535 a2 -
Bored #0d loan Inbereals 14,748,851 16,849 550 =
Ceddends nal of wilbhedding 120 (5955 - SE1214
Manggement as rebate 1895 - 25
Ol Incoma g
Tedal bncame 14,628 807 35.812,800 5512314
Exponsos
Bl b et Heh [:1] - 3 oS
Mansgamoend faes i 14532680 ad STH
Castabidion Taas 4 1. 173058 122551
Adsankerall o fods B b 1] LEen
Audd leas T TR | 10703
Ll Tims. i . 40,00
Prirfing ard olhas raparing foss BE 3 = [ L
Taoes 10 1is 14 181 B8 15
Coords gion foas § G0z 460,158 4,729
Dapoafary {oos B il ndy I 2 i B
Transfer agent faas 2.at9 e 143 foe ]
Laan ssmmimant foad 12 603
Liscollanaoiss fooas Hal 14 367 ] BOA2T
Tolal expors os before redmb uns emsnt 3414572 10,125 55T 483 274
Ruedmbursamant of epanses 4 2,450 604 =
Todal expor oa aftor reimbursembnt A48T T.034,993 453274
Wt inwesbrent incomed{dalicil) 11,411,035 ATATT.AY T
Roalised gain on Invastmants Ha). b} 41 TadTa T B 13500583
Raaksed (58] On Imssiments il wie (11,748,811} (7 465 G154 361
Ml raalissd gaindlost) sh
Futures conirgats 2} {56] —_ —
Forgn cuvendaes ard forward foregn anchanes ransaetiong i), 2(e} 192,346 — (436 453)
Swap raniadiong 2d} {58 BEY) = =
Copliors conracts 2dh 471 — —
Nt roalisod gainiloss) fer tho year (T.493.20€) Fil (530,817
Changa in uncaaliced appreciation on ivssiments (3,208 TN} — (1565130
Charga in unrsaliced [dapradation) on nvasim ents (2 AT &) 12 P o
Mal chiangd in unmeaised apprecdationydepreciation) on
Forgdgn cunrendas arvd forward fordsgn dochanga bransactions Hd). 26} £ 18 8E) - -3 1E:}
Swap transed ons 204y 14 244 — ——
Nt change in unrgalised sppresiationideprocision] for thy your i13,136.582) = (46,16}
Inereis e Dot oass) M el assols 0% 6 rosull of oporations (9.224.053) ITATT.TIE (1,395,503}
Mo omontE bn unit capital
Ml rocalpls a8 & rdsul of (s of wils 2[R} 18 483 564 2 BB6, 108 028 199,111
M paymanls a5 a ramll of repurchass of unis 2ny {54 005 431] (E AT AN (o) T ERG 1)
I reat aDecroans) in mol asscte 59 & rosdll of movements in unit capital (36815870 (801,231,003) {7450, 408)
D donds doalinsd 11 {10, ek k) [2T 87T Ti8) (A E NS R T
Nt assodn ot tho ond of (B ydar 120827203 1760, 359,592 16,522,726

The Nolas on pages £3 10 48 form Bn ntegral part of Tem Bnanaal o Wiemans

[14] BilackRock Glebal Invesiment Sories

125/266



EDINETOOOO

O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)

Statement of Changes in Units Outstanding
for the year ended 31 January 2023
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Annual repor and audited financial stalements [18]
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Organisation

BlackRodk Global Invesiment Senes (the "Fund’) is a fonds
commun de placement formed under the laws of the Grand
Duchy of Luxembowg, The Fund s set up under Part 1l of the
law of 17 December 2010 relating to undenakings for colbecive
investment as amended {the “7010 L aw™). The Fund qualifies as
an allernative vvestment fund (A7 in acoordance with
Directve: 2011/61EU of the European Parliament and of the
Coundl of & June 2011 on Alternative Investment Fund
Managers (AIFMD) and the Lusemboug law of 12 July

2013 on alternative investment fund managers as amended (he
2043 Law™)

Thea Management Company appointed BlackHock Assal
Mamagement lredand Lirndled (the “AIFM7 a8 the allennative
investmen fund manager The AIFM will provide and procure
the: provision of investment managemem services, mduding
portbalio and risk management fundions, bor the Fund. The
AIFM is entifled 1o delegale is fundions . powers, discretions,
duties amd obligatons, suljed o AIFMD requiremens

As al 31 January 2023, the Fund offered units in five Portfolios,
Global Alacation Portlolio, Global Equity Income Portlofio,
Income Siraleqies Portlolio, Super Money Markel Fund and
World Income Portfolio (sach a Portfolio” and collectively the
Porifolios”). Each Portfclio has different investiment objectives
and invests i different types of investiments.

Each Perlfolio iz a separale podl of assels and s representad
by separate units of each Portfolio which are divided into unit
classes as detalled on page 52

The dasses of unils have equivalent rights in the Portlalios bt
carry dilferent lealures and changing strudures, which ane more
fulty desaibed in the Fund's Prospedus.

Slgnificant events during the year

* Effective 14 March 2022, Tarek Mahmoud was appointed as a
Direcies of the Board of the Managemient Company.

* Effective 25 May 2022, Graham Bamping resigned from the
Board of Directors of the Management Company.

* Effective 18 August 2022, Michael Renner was appointed as a
D escted of the Board of the Management Company

+ Anesw Prospectus was issucd on 4 January 2023

2. Sumimary of Significant Accounting Pollcles

The nancial statements have been prepared in accordance
with generally accepled accounting principles in Luxembourg
and with the legal and requialony requirements relaling 1o the
preparaton of the finandal stalerments as prescribed by the
Lusembouig adthorities for Ludsmborg investinenl companies
and include the following significant sccounting policies:

(&) Valuation of Irvestments and Other Assels

The Fund's iwestiments and olher assels are valued as follows:

Hon-Money Market Portfolios

* Term koans are nol lisled on any securnities exchandge. In
delesmning the Nel Assel Value (MAVT). the Porticlio utilises
the valuations of tesm leans flurmished by a pricing service
approved by the AIFM. The pricing service typically values
Lermm koans at the bid pice when quolations ae readily
avallable. Term loans lor which quolalions are nod readily
avallable are valued at fair markel value on a consistent basis
a5 determined by the pricing service using pricing matnces o
dedesmine valuations. The procedures of the pricing services
and s evaluations are reviewed by the vwestment Adviser of
the relevant Portfolio {the “investmant Adviser™s under the
general supervision of the AIFM. The AFM has determined in
oo Faith thal the use of & pricng senice g a fair method of
destet mdning the valuation of lerm loans,

b

Portiolio secumnities comsisting of equilies. bonds and other
debt instruments (other than shorl-tenm obligations but
inchuding listed sswues) may be valued on the basis of prices
furnished by one or moce pricng services which detemmine
prices for nommal, instilutional-size rading unils of such
securibes using markel information, eansactions for
comparable securities and vanous relalionships between
sealriies thal are generally recognised by msiutonal
traders:

L

Portiolio secumities thal are isted on stock exchanges or
traded on other regulated markels are valued a the last
knowin price on such exchanges of markeds as of the dose of
the bustness day mmediately preceding the valuation dale
with the exceplion of Glabal Equity Inosime Porfolio lor which
sacuriles are valuad al the valuation date al the lasl known
e @ of 400 porn. Lucernbourg time ("4PM CET” o, in each
case, the "Relevant Time?) I there are no such sales of a
particular securily, the value of such secunty will be the [ast
avallable bid price of the Relevanl Time o, in certain
circurmstances, such portfolio securities are valued a the last
sala prica on the exchange thal is the pimary market ko such
securities. of the last quoted bid price for those secunties for
which the Over-the-Counter {"OTC" marked such as NASDAL
15 the primary e ket for bgled securilies;

= Ivestmeents in open-ended oollectve investment schomes are
valused on the basis of the last avallable nel assel value of the
units of such collective vestiment schemsa;

Fooed incorme securities thal are nol listed on slock exchanges
of traded on other regulated markels are valued at the last
avallable bid price of yield equivalents oblained from one o
mewe dealers of pricing services. Securilies raded in the QTG
riarkel are valped at the kagl available b piice. In cases
whese securilies are raded on more than one exchange, the
securiiies are valued on the exchange designated by of under
the direction of the AIFM as the primary market, Fortfolio
securibes that are traded both i the OTC market and on a
siock exchange afe valued according te the broadest and
most representalive marked

Annual report and audited financial statements  [43]
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

= When marked quotations are not readily avadable or the AIFM
determines thal the independent market quolation does nol
reflect fair markel value, the AIFM will, in acooedance with
applicable laws, delerming a far markel value for that assel or
liablity. When determining the price for such an assel of
liakdlity. the AFM may use one or more of avarety of fair
valuation methodalogies (depending on lacors including e
assel lype). The AIFM might. for example, price the asset
based on the original costof the investment of Il right use
proprielary or third-party models, meluding models that rely
upon died portiolio management pricing Inputs and which
refled the significance allrbuled 1o the vaious Factors being
conald ered by the AIFM when il valies the aseel andior
liability, a5 well a5 certain assumplions. The AlFM might also
usge prices of aclual, execited, histoncal trasadions in the
assel andfor liabilily {or relaled or comparalde assels andior
liabilities) #% a basis for valualion or even Luge, where
appropriale, an appralsal by a third parly experienced in the
valuation of similar assels and/or Babililies

As al 31 January 2023, the adjusied far value applied o cerlamn
securnies 15 disdosed in the table below:

& ol Hed
Aasety

Qo

Currency

Fairvalue

Ircoimi Hralcues Podloho LEED T

Pleasa refer to the Portlolio of Investments section for further
delalls of the secumies

Super Money Market Fund

= The AFM has esdablished proceduwes designed o stabilize, o
the exlenl reasonably possible and in accordance with the
Money Markel Funds Regulalion (the "MMER"). the Super
Money Market Fund's price par unil as computed for the
purposae of subscrpllons and redemplions al USD 1 {the
“rovstand NAY . NAY 15 rounded 1o the nearest por cenlags
pednt, of ils equivalent in currency lerms;

= The Portlolio's underlying secunilies and money market
instruments are valued based upon thelr amorlsed cost This
Invalves valuimg an mstrurment al its cosl and therealer
assuming a aonslant amorbisation o malunty of sy discoun
of premium, regardbess of the impaed of Nuclating inlenes)
rabess on e marked value of the instruments. While this
method provides certasmty in vabuaton, i may resull in peiods
during which valse, as delermined by amortised cost, is
higher or lower than the price the Super Money Market Fumd
woulkd recene i L sold the instrurment,;

The: Pextlolio is dassified as a shorl term Public Debl CNAY
MKMF and aompiies with the requirements under MMFR. Az a
resull of this, the AIFM has introduced additional prodent and
rigorous liquidity manadgement procedures (o ensune
comphiance wilh any liquididy thresholds applicalbie to the
Fortiohio,

[44]  BlackRock Glebal Invesiment Series

= To assess whether the assels of the Portfolio ane sufficiently
liquid to med reasonably loreseeable redermplions and not
fowrce assels from being kquidaled at discounted prices, the
volalilily of The Portlolio’s assels s requently monitored . The
AIFM may also apply one on more of Lhe following messures

irrrersing bguidity fees on redemplions that adegquately
tefled the cosl Lo the Portolio of achieving quedity and
ensure thal the umitholders who remain in the relevanl
Porttolio are not unfairly disadvantaged when olher unil
holders redeem thelr units duing the period.

i, within & peeriod of 90 days, the lotal duration of
spspensons exceeds 15 days, the Super Money Market
Fund shall automatically cease b be & shot-lerm Public
Detst CHAY MMF and the AIFM shall inform unithaoldars of
s fact.

alter the Board of Dwedcors of the Management Company
of the Porlfolio has determined its course of action with
regard to above apoints, it shall promply provide details of
its decision to the compelent authority of the Porifolio;

= rrposing redennpbion gates that lirmi the amount of units o
e redeemed on any one working day e a mesdimem of
108 of the units of the Portlolio for any period up 1o
15 working days;

= irrpesing a suspension of redemplions lor any penod of up
1o 15 working days, of

= daking no immediate acion other than fulflling the obligaton
laid down i Article 24 {2} of the MMFR

The Por tlolio caloulates a shadow NAY whereby umder bying
securities and money makel instruments are valued based
U @ ol B-lo-marked peice. In compliance with MMFR
respuirements, the diffesence between the conglant MAY per
unit and the NAY per unil caloulated wsing mank-to-rmarked 15
rmemiored and published daily on the websile of the

MMF: hitps: hwww Mackrock comdcashien-imfclient -reporting

All Portfollos
= Cash s valued @l its nominad amont;

* Repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreamenis
are valued al cost plus accieed interest. Recevable and
payatde balances melated o sepurchase agrecments and
reserse repurchase agreements are induded in the Stalerment
of Net Assels respedively under the captions Hecetvable for
imvestmems sold” and Payable for investments purchased”
The accrued interest from reverse repurchase agresments is
inchaded in the Statement of Met Assels under the caplion
“Interest and dividends recervable™

L4

Liquid assels such as money malkel msliuments are valued
o @ amed lised ool basis:

Azsets which indude, in particular, interest and dvidends
recedvable, receivalble for investiments sold and recetvable for
Fumad units subsoribesd ae valued at nomanal value;

Liatilities which indude, in particula, payable for imvestiments
purchased. payable for Fund unils redeemed, interest and
dividends payalie are valued at nominal value
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

(b) Realised gains amnd losses on Investments

Realised gains and losses on sales of mvestments have been
delarmined on the basis of the average cost mathod

(=} Incoimed Expense from Investments

The Fund takes credit for incomes from its imdestments on the
Talkowing biasis:

interest income ks accmed dally and includes the ameorisalion
o a straght-Bne basis of preamumes and accredion of
disentints

bank interest s recogmsed on an accruals basls and indudes
Interasl iIncomse from revarsa rapurchass agreaments,

dividend inconn: 13 accued on the ecdividend date and is
shown net of withholding L.

incoame from reverse repurchase ransactons is induded in
the Statement of Oparations under the caplion “Bank
Inlerest”;

= an imerest rate differential (IRD) is the difference in inberest
rales bedween lwo similar interest beaning securities which
arises from the carrency hedging process eq. il the 1 month
interest rate on LSD s 0. 25% and on AUD iLis 1%, then the
irnplied IRD s 0 75% Traders in the foretgn aechange market
use IRD's when pricing lonward exchange rates. IRDs can be
postive, ml or negative. Inclusion of IRDYs in deidends may
conshitube a paymment from capilal in some junsdicdions. IRD s
recorded as rmiscellaneous fees in the Statement of
Operations and Chaniges in Nel Assels

{d} Financal Detvative Instmenls

Duming the year, the Fund has entered into a numbser of lorward
foregn exchange ansacions and lulures conliacts. Open
futures contracts are valued al the fair marked value to close the
comracts on the accounting date. Surpluses/deficils ansing from
these and closed unsettled conlracts are taken to unrealised
appreciation/{depreciation) and ae indhuded under assets of
liabiliibes {as appropiate) in the Statement of Net Assets. The
el change in wnrealised appoedalion of depreciation and the
ned realised gains of bosses on seltlement or closing
tramsactions of forwand foreign exchange ransactions and
futures contracts are presented in the Statement of Operalions
and Changes in Nel Assels

Duming the vear, the Fund has entered inlo swap ansadions 1o
escchamoge the return generated by one imstrument lor the relurn
generated by ancther investment. The Fund can wrile cred
defaull swaps ((CDSY) and purchase COS. When the Fund
wiites andior purchases a COS, a seres of premiums is paid o
of paid by the Fund, in return for 3 payment contingent on a
caesil evenl {predefinesd i the agreement). The premiums ae
inchuded in the cost of COS. Whete possible. swaps are marked
io ket based upon daily prices obiained from thied party
pricang agents and vernled againg the acual make makes
Where such quolalions are nol avallable swaps are priced
based upon daily quotations from the markel maker. In both
cases changes in quolations are recorded as nel change in
unrealised appreciation or depredation in the Stalement of
Cxperations and Changes in Ned Assets. Nel realised gains o

hogsas on mality of lerminaton of the swaps and the inleest
earned in relation o the swaps are presented in the Stalement
of Operalions and Changes in Nel Assels

Each Portfolic may sell call options and purchase putl oplions on
stack ndices 1o seok 1o hedge portfolio secunlies agalnst the
impad of antcipated general price declines in equity makets of
spicilic industry sedors thereol. Options on indices are simila
1o options on securitkes excepl thal on exercse of asskniment,
the parties lo the condrad pay or receive an amounl of cash
equal o the difference babween the dosing value of the index
and the exercise price of the oplion tmes a specied mulliple
The elfectiveness of a hedge amploying stock index oplions will
depend pimsnily on the degree of cormelation belween
rievements i the vabue of the index urdelying the option and
in the perticn of the portfolio being hedged . Amcag olher
factors, the degree of correlation with resped 1o conver tild e
saailies will be affected by the degrea lo which the markel
value of poriloio securities is altnbutable o thelr conversion
value The nel change in unreslised apprecialion of depreciation
and the nel realised gains or losses on expaalion o closing
ransadions of oplions are presented in the Stalement of
Operalions and Changes in Ned Assels

(&) Foreign Exchange

The costof investments in carrencies other than the currency of
denomination of the respedive Portlolio has been translated al
the rates of exchange ruling at the time of purchas. Market
value of invesiments and other assets in currencies other than
the cumrency ol denomination of the respeciive Porticho have
been translaled & the exchange rate prevalling a the Portiolios
valuation polint in Liseembourg a2 at 31 Jahuany 2023 The e
change in umrealised apgpredalion of depreciation and the net
realised gains o logses on disposal of selllement of other
assels or labiliies in currencies other than the curency of
denomination of the respecive Portiolio are presented in the
Statement of Operations and Changes in Nel Assels

Ineome and expenses in cumrencies olher than the currency of
dencmination of the respedive Portfolio have been translated al
the rates of exchange prevaling on Wansacion date

Differant exchange rates are resulling from the pricing mal rix
and different valuation points between the diffesent Portfolios. In
the below Lable, the 4PM CET exchange rates on 31 January
2023 are presented bor Global Allocation Portiolio, Global Equity
Income Porticlio and World Income Portfolbio, the 5PM CET
excharnye rales on 30 January 2023 are presented for Inoome
Sirategles Portlolio and Super Money Market Fund

Thee following exchange rales were used to transiate the
investiments and olher assels and olher liabdities for all
Pestiolios denormimated n cumences olher than the base
currency of the respedive Portfolio a5 al 31 Janweary 2003

']?[IBE{'

CAD 0 745000 07 e
CHF | O3 ol e
DEK 0, 1354 ez
EUR | (55083 | RS0
GBF 1 234500 1 23400

Annual repor and audited financial stalements [45]
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
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{f} Combined Financial Stalemenis

The: Combinid Financal Staterments of the Fund are expressed
in VS0 and nclude the wotal of the Imandal statements of the
different Por tfolios.

(i1} Deferred Organisational Expenses

Deferred oganisalional expenses are capitalised and are

Al lisizd on @ straghi-line bagis over a fivie year paiod. As al
M January 2023, all Portfolos had lully amortised their deferred
organisational expenses

(1) Income Equalisaton

Each Portfolio follows the acoounting pradics of equalisation (o
present the undistributed income per unit from flucluating solely
by resason of subscniptions and redemplions of n3 umts. This s
accomplished by mamntaining an equalisation account for the
relevant Portfolio. The equalisation account is caredited with that
periion of the proceeds of subscaibed units representing the net
undistributed moome per unit of those unils, and is deb@led with
thad portion of any redemplion paymenl representing nel
undistributed imcome per unit of the redecmed units. A portion
of the dividends dedared by a Portfolio rsy consial of amoints
previously credied to the equalisation account. The yield
resported o ivestons will incude amounts paid from nel inoonme
as well as any amount paid from the equalisation accounl

The Inosme E qualisation is mduded in the Movements i unil
capital in the Statement of Operations and Changes in MNet
Assels

(i} Unhunded loans represent the remaining obligation of the
Portfolio to the bomrower

As al 31 January 2023, the Income Sirategies Portfolio had an
unfunded loan of USD 107 800 disclosed under Payabde for
unfunded loan” in the Stalement of Nel Assels

3. Management Company and Investment Advisers
{a) Managemen] Compamy

BlackRock Fund Management Company S A is the
Mamagement Company of the Fund. Pursuant to the
Management Regulations, the Management Company has
agreed to manage the Fund's Portfolios for the exdusive
acoount of the relevant Unitholders, The Depositary and such
olher agents as appropnate. nduding Destnibutors of the Fund’s
Unils in and oulside Japan are appointed by the Managemeant
Company. The Managemenl Company has deegated the
appointment of Distribanors (o the Principal Distibator

[48]  BlackRock Glebal Invesiment Sories

BlackRook Fumnd Managemen!t Company S48 s awholly ownied
subrsidiary within the BlackRock Group and is regulated by the
Commigsion de Surveiliance du Secleur Financiar ("CS5F")

(b AIFM

Their Managemenl Company has appointed BiackRock Assel
Management lredand Liried a3 the aftermative investment fund
manager o provide and proame the provision of mvestment
ranagensenl services, induding porticlio and rsk management
furcibons, kor the Fund within the meaning of the AIFMD. The
AlIFM is entitled 1o defegale s fundions. powers, discretions.
diilles and obligations, subjed o AIFMD requirements.

Thee AlFM iz a wholly owned subsidiary within the BlackRock
Group and 15 authorised by the Cantral Bank of Ireland

The AIFM is pald out of the management fee due to the
Managemsent Company, & outlingd in Motle 4

(c} Investment Advisers

Subgect ko the overall responsibility of the AIFM, each of the
Poetiolios receives investment advisory senvices rom the
Investment Advisers

(ol Allacaton Podloko ElackReck Japan Co ., Lid

Fobil Equity ncoma Podtlol BlackRack Inves! men Mamagemend {LK] Limded
rome Sirbeges Porfolo BlachRock Franaad Manegemnd, Ing

Supat Morky Matosl Fud Blachack Frandal Mamsgemend, Inc

World Incomi Port ol BlackAock Japan o Lid

The Inverstment Advisers form pan of the BlackRock Group

The lvvizstment Advisers aee each paid oul o the managemdsent
fee due o the Management Company, as outlined in Note 4

4. Management and Distribution Fees
{a) Managemen feeg

Duineg th wesi, the Fund pald managerment fees (o the
Managemeanl Company

The leved of managemen fee varies from 0.33% to 0.75% per
annum of the NAY, with the exceplion of Class F units, whach do
nod pagy @ manadement fee bul raiher alee to the [nvestmen
Adviser or allilistes under a separale agreament, The level of
rmanagenvent fee vakes aoconding o which Portolio and umnil
class the ivestor buys. These lees acoaue dally, are based on
the: MAY of the relevant Portfolio and are paid monthly, The
Fund's AlFM and Investiment Adviser fees ae bome by the
Managemsent Company and paid through the managemen fee.

(b Distribution fees

The: Managemen Company has also entered into 3 Distribution
Agreement with ElackRock Invesiment Management

(UK Limdted {the Principal Dystributor). The Pincpal
Distribator may condude contraciual arrangements with canain
Distribasiors for the disinbotion of unils outside the US such as
the: lapanese Distribulors (s disdosed on pages 3 o 4)

Thex lesved of distribastion fes varies from O 1667 % to 1 00% per
annum, of the MAV, with the exceplion of Classes AD unilts, D
units, F units, Institutional | units, which do nol pay a disinbution
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

feee. Thie leswed of distribution fee varies acoording Lo which
Pestfolio and unit dass the investor buys. These fees acaue
dally, e based on the NAY of the rdevani Portiolio and are

pald quarllery

The management and distilulion lees per unil dass lor each
Pratlolio are disclosed in detail in the Fund’s Prospectus

Since 30 Apal 2020, thera had been a tee walver on
management lees, distnbution fees in place lor the Supar
Moniey Marked Fund's Common, Current and Insiflutionsl | units
The lese watvers have been stopped on managemont and
distribution fees on 5 May 2022

5. Coordination Fees

The Management Company has entered inlo an agreement wilh
BlackRock Operations (Luxembourg) S a4 ol (BROLY) pursuant
1o which BROL . under the divection of the Board of Directors of
the: Management Company. provides cerlaln corporale and
adrmimsirative coordination seqvices on behall of the Fund

Thee coordination fee rate is 0.025% of the average daly NAV of
the: Fund (excluding Class F units), per annum

6. Administration Fees

The Management Company has appointed State Strest Bank
International GmbH, Lucemboung Branch, 49 avenue J-F
Kennedy, L-1855 Luxemboung, as the Fund's Adminisirative
Agent in Luxemboung 1o assisl the Managemen! Company al its
principal office in Luxembowrg with general adminisirative Lasks
pursuant o the Administration Agreement, against changing
usual foes lor thess seivices.

7. Audit Fees
Detailed bebow are the fees patd to Dedoatte: Audit 5.3 ol for the
vear ended 31 January 2023

Aul and sudd relabed senaces fexciudng VAT)
Hor-aud] senices =

& Depositary Fees

The Managament Company has entered inlo the Deposilary
Agreerment wilh ihe Depositary, Stale Streel Bank International
GmbH, Luxembourg Brandh. This agreement was amended
effedive 17 January 2019 in ine with the appoiniment of the
AlFM

The Depositay Agreemeant provides that sl securities and cash
of the Fund, other than cash held in rading acoounts or held in
any operaling accounts lor expenses of dividend disbursement
accounts {which may be mantained al olher banks), are to ba
held by or to the ordes of the Depositary provided that the
Management Company may place cash in overnight call
acoounts of on Lerm depost with other banks approved by the
Depositary, who shall continue 1o supervise such funds. The
Depositary is responsible for the colledon of principal and
incewne on, and the payment for and collection of procesds of
secunilies bought and sobd for the Fund. Inline with the
compliance of the AIFM and the Fund's compliance with AlFMD.
the Depositany's role pursuant 1o AIFMD enhances Unitholder
protedion and ncludes the responsibilily 10 salekeep the assels
of the Fund and hold in custody all inanaal mstruments, cash
and other assels of the Fund {the “Safekeeping Fundtion™)

Thex Depositary charges the Fund lees bor these serices in
accordance with s usual rates expressed as a fradion of a
percentage per annum of the nel assets of the Fund. The
Dieposiizry may appoint one of more cosrespondent banks, and
115 expeded thal the Depositary relains a correspondent bank
in the United States, whose lees shall be borne by the Fund. As
part of its Salekeeping fundion, the Deposfary 1s iatde to the
Fund for the loss of linandal insteuments which are held m

custody

9. Transactions with Related Parties

The ultimete holding company of the Manasgement Comipany,
the Principad Distributor, the AIFM, the vestment Manages and
the: Investment Advizers is BlackRock, Inc., a company
incorporated in Dedaware, USA

Dumingg the wear there have been no significanl ransactions
which were outside the ordinary course of business or which
were nol on normal aormenencial e s,

10. Taxes

Uniler present Luxembourg law and practice, the Fund s not
liabde: to @y Lusesnboung of diary Incom: of capilal galng ax,
now are dividends paid by the Fund subject o any Luxembourg
withheolding Lz, However, the Fund is subjsct 1o a subseriplion
tax { Tae d abonnement) of 0.06% per annum kevied on the
MNAY of sach Portholio s the |2l day of each clenda quarter,
in acoordanoe with the 200 0 Law, excepl in resped of Super
Meney Marked Fund as well a3 in respecd of the Pertfolios o
unit classes reserved for instilutional imeestons within the
rmeaning of Artiche 174 of the 2010 Law, on which a reducead tae
of 0.01% per annum s kevied

For ihe year ended 31 January 2023 Global Allocation Portlolio
has ol paid Lusembourg taxes, a8 no subsoaiption G is paid
on ihe assels held by ihe Porliolio in other undertakangs for
collective Investment already subject to thal ax in Luxemboung.

Uneder applicable forekgn tax ks, withholding taces may be
imposed on inlerest, dhdends and capital gams al vaious
rales,

11. Dividends

Super Money Market Fund

The net income {i.e., accrued interest income net of accrued
expienses) s dedared @ a dvidend on each valuation date on
all units oulsianding on thal day 1o the Unitholders of recosd
irmmvediabely poor 1o the daily determination of MAY per unil,
prevaded abaaya that units shall be entitled to a dividend only
froan the: day on which their subscription is settled prios 1o 12PM
Luzembourg timne and thal units redeemed shall nol be entilled
Iy reecedve (e dally dhvadend dedared on the setifement day of
thesr redemglion

Hon-Money Market Partfolios

Thez net income of the redevant other Portfolios consists of

(1) nterest socmied, discoum eamed (Induding both ariginal
issue and mearked discount) o other income eamed, (i) less the
edimated expenses of the Portfolio (incuding management
fees). In resped of each dividend declared, the Board of
Direscdews ol the Managermenl Company ey determine if, and
by whal extent, such dividend is 1o be paid out of undistributed
nel vestrment noomee, réalised and unrealised capital gains.
respedialy ncreased or decreased by nel equalisalion aaedils
or debdls

Annual report and audited financial ststoments  [47]
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

12. Credit Facllity

As al 31 January 2023, Income Strategles Portfolio was entitled
1o & cresdit Facility of LVSD 40 000000 from Statle Streel Bank
and Trust Company. No portion of the aedt Facility was used
during the year ended 31 January 2073

A doan commitmen fee s charged on a daily basts i relation 1o
this credit Faality which 15 induded in the Siatament of
Operations and Changes in Ned Assets. The loan commilment
fee consists of 015% chamged on the unusad portion of the
creadil factiny and the Federal Funds Effedive Rate of the
Uverndghd Bank Funding Rate (depending on which is aghe) +
0. 90% margn spread on the used portion of the aedil Faclily

The comirmdtmend fee is disclosed in the Staterment of
Crperations under the caplion Loan commilment fees”

11, Financlal Derlvative Instruments and Efficlent Portfolio
Management Techniques

Each of the Portbolios may use derivalives 1o hedge marks and
currency nsk, and for the purposes of efficient portfolio
rrisanEgemenl

The use of derivalives may expose the Forifolios to a higher
degres of nsk. In particular. demvative conlracds can be highly
volatile, and the amownt of nitial magin is generally small
reslaive 1o the size ol the contrad so thal transadions e
geared. Arelatively small markel movement may have a
petentially larger impad on desivatives than on standard bonds
o equilles,

Prlesswses pester 1o the Poatlolio o Investments section bor more
delals

14, Transaction costs

In order o achieve 118 Invesimenl objecine, a Portiolo will incur
transacions costs in refation Lo trading acivity on its Portolio of
Imvestments. Discosed in the table below are separately
identfiable iransaciion costs incurred by each Portfolio for the
yvear endad 31 January 2023, Thaese include comrmission cosis,
sefflement fees and broker fees.

[48]  BlackRock Glebal Invesiment Series

Trammction casts

Sobel Allszation Porloko ush -
(Sobe Equily ncoms Poetl ol ush BR20
ircome Sirefeges Porfolo usn T4
Supeer Moray bkl Fund LWED -
World Income Porlobo ush _

Mol Jl transaction cosls ae separalay ientifiable. For CFDs,
swaps. forward foreign exchange transactions. lutures conlracls,
opions, syaptions and TBAs, ransacion costs are ncluded in
the purchase and sales price of the mvestment. Whilst nol
separately identifiable these ransaction cosls are caplured
within the pefformance of each Porifolio. Markel impad cosis
are nod separately ientifiabde and are therefore also nol
disclosed in the abowe table

15. Amounts due fromits broker

The Porliolios rade derrvalives with a range of coumerparties
The counderparlies o forward forelgn exchange ramsaclions
and swap conlracls are shown in the Portfolio of Investments

Cash collaleral is paid or recerved on swaps 1o coves any
exposure by the counterpany 1o the Fund or by the Fund 10 the
counterparty

Due fromlo Broker on the Slalement ol Mal Assels consists of
cash collateral and margin pakdirecened from the Fund's
cleanng rokers and varnous counterparties.

16. Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent o the Ainandal year
end, and up lo the dale of the approval of the inandal
statement s, which in the opinion of the Board of Diredors ol the
Management Company may have had a matena impad on the
financial statements for the inandal year ended 31 Jamnuary
2023

17, Approval date

The nancial slatements were approved by the Board of
Diredors of the Managermsnl Company on 25 May 2023
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Appendix | — Unit Classes (Unaudited)

Unk Classes In Issue
As at 31 January 2023, the Fund offes the following umit Common diztrbutng il in LS
prtekd
Currant dsinbwting unitin USD
F Class dizlribubng unilin USD

Imstitutiomal | Uinits'

matiuional | destribubng unil in LSSD

Unit Classes Launched
Tteer e were no unil classes launched durng the yea

Unit Classes Closed
There were no unil classes dosed dunng the year

[52] BiackRock Glebal Invesiment Sories
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2024
299,704,309.30 46,975,653,440
2,318,374.43 363,382,008
297,385,934.87 46,612,271,432
10,959,987
3,939,278
23,498,085
20.36 3,191
21.28 2,213
122.83

134/266




10

2633

1933

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

135/266



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

50 7,837 2024
12.5 1,959 40,000

24

2019 17 2019 17
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2024
Tarek Mahmoud 0
EMEA

Joanne Fitzgerald 0
Leon Schwab 0
Benjamin Gregson

0
Svetlana Butvina 0
Jonathan Griffin 0
Richard Gardner 0

) 0
Michael Renner
1990

0

Deloitte Audit S.a r.1I.

Deloitte Audit
S.ar.l.
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2024

3,675,212,414 .34
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38 59

2024 31

156.74

23 103
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2023 12 31
2023 12 31 2022 12 31

881 138,088 842 131,975

11 4,989 781,976 3,578 560,816
1,068 167,398 1,355 212,383

6,057 949,374 4,933 773,198

6,938 1,087,462 5,775 905,174

12 500 78,370 500 78,370
13 199 31,191 230 36,050
2,818 441,693 2,412 378,057

3,517 551,255 3,142 492,477

14 3,421 536,208 2,633 412,696
6,938 1,087,462 5,775 905,174

2024 25

14 30
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2023 12 31

2023 2022
17,714 2,776,492 15,548 2,436,994
(17,145)  (2,687,307) (15,078)  (2,363,326)
569 89,185 470 73,668
(141) (22,100) (133) (20,846)
428 67,085 337 52,821
39 6,113 11 1,724
1 157 €)) (157)
468 73,354 347 54,389
(93) (14,577) (10) (1,567)
375 58,778 337 52,821

30
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2023 12 31
2023 500 230 2,412 3,142
— — 375 375
— — 375 375
— (31) 31 —
2023 12 31 500 199 2,818 3,517
2022 500 591 1,714 2,805
— — 337 337
— — 337 337
— (361) 361 —
2022 12 31 500 230 2,412 3,142
2023 78,370 36,050 378,057 492,477
— — 58,778 58,778
— — 58,778 58,778
— (4,859) 4,859 —
2023 12 31 78,370 31,191 441,693 551,255
2022 78,370 92,633 268,652 439,656
— — 52,821 52,821
— — 52,821 52,821
— (56,583) 56,583 —
2022 12 31 78,370 36,050 378,057 492,477

14 30
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2023 12 31
2023 2022

375 58,778 337 52,821

7 1,007 — —

(39) (6,113) (11) (1,724)

93 14,577 10 1,567

436 68,339 336 52,665

11 (1,411) (221,160) (612) (95,925)

14 788 123,511 687 107,680

(187) (29,310) 411 64,420

(93) (14,577) (10) (1,567)

(280) (43,887) 401 62,853

(280) (43,887) 401 62,853

1,355 212,383 954 149,530

) (1,097) — —

12 31 1,068 167,398 1,355 212,383

30
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2023 12 31

1855 35 35A,
Avenue JF Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

2024 25

Registre de Commerce et des Sociétés
Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier

2022
2024
2011

2011/61/
2013 12
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12

12

2023
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2023 2022
17,714 15,548

2023 2022
10,294 5,613
370 472
2,463 3,313
4,587 6,150
17,714 15,548

11

2023 2022

7 —
65 180 Article 65(1)180(2)
2023 2022

43 41
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2023 2022
95 115
@ (105)
93 10

24.94 2022

2023 2022
468 347
117 86
€) (105)
Y 1) 29
93 10
2024
15
12
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31
881 842
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
842 831
39 11
881 842
34 2022 24
10
842 880,969 2022 842,013
17,714 2022 15,548
4,550 2022

151/266



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

11
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
405 180
4,550 3,378
34 20
4,989 3,578
18
12
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
12.50 40 500 40 500
13
10
50 2022 2023
98 2022 52
128 2022 413

2023 12 31 150 2022 180
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31
85 39
3,336 2,594
3,421 2,633
16
2022
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881 881

842 842
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2023 12 31

— 881

1,068 —
405 —
1,473 881

3,421 —

3,421 —

2022 12 31

— 842

1,355 —
180 —
1,535 842

2,633 —

2,633 —
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16

1,068

1,068
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20 20
20 33
20 49

19

2023

354

2022
180

2023
17,143
92
17,235
3,336

2022

14,969
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.
Statement of Financial Pozition as at 31 December 2023

31 Decembrer 31 December

023 20z
MNote 5 (M bR LI
Assiels
MNom-current assels
Financial assets ] 831 B2
Current assels
Trade and other receivables 11 4,980 3578
Cash and cash equivalents 1,068 1,355
6,087 4,933
Total assets 6,938 5378
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital 12 S04 S0
Other reserves 13 199 230
Retained eamings 2,818 2412
Total equity 3517 3,042
Current liabilities
Trade anid other payvables 14 3421 2633
Total cquity and liabilitics 6,938 5775

Approved by the Board on 25 June 2024 and =igned on its behalf by:

Ms Joanne Fitzgerald
Director

7 't";/?}' L
Director

The notes on pages 15 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements,
Page 12
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BlackRock Fund Management Company 5.A.

Income Statement for the Year Ended 31 December 2023

023 022

Mote 5 (00 5 0

Revenue 1 17.714 15,548
Cost of =ales {17,145} [15.078)

Gross profit 550 470
Administrative expenses (141 (133)

Operating profit 5 428 337

Finance income 39 11
Nt gaing/(losses) on derivative financial instnuments 1 (1}

Profit before tac 468 347
Income tax expense & {93} (1)

Profit for the year 375 337

The above results were derived wholly from continuing operations.

The netes on pages 15 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements,
Page 11
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BlackRock Fund Management Company 5.A.

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2023

23 2022
MNote 5 00 5000
Cash Nows from operating activities
Profit for the vear 375 337
Adjustments to cash flows from non-cash items:
Foreign exchange loss 5 7 -
Finance income (30 {11}
Income tax, expense g 93 10
436 356
Working capital adjustrments:
Increase m trade and other receivables 11 (L411) (512}
Increase m trade and other payables 14 THE 637
Cash generated from operations (187) 411
Inecme taxes paid {03} {10}
Net cash flow from operating activitics (280 4
Wet {decreasedincrease in cazh and cash equivalents (2800 4
Cazh and cash equivalents o | January 1,355 054
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held {7y -
Cash and cash equivalents ol 31 Decenber 1,068 1,355

The netes on pages 15 to 30 form an integral part of these financial statements,
Page 14
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BlackRock Fund Management Company 5.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2023

1 General infermation
The Compary is a private comparey limited by share capital incorperated and domiciled n Luxemnbourg.

The address of its registered office is:
35A, Avenue JF Kennedy
Lusermbourz

L-1855

Grand Duiclyy of Lustembotirg

These financial statements were authorized For issue by the Board on 25 Tune 2024,

Principal activity

The principal activity of the Company is The principal activity of the Company is the provision of investment
management administrative services to Licembourg collective investment undertakings and the issue of
certificated or statements of undivided co-proprictorship mterests in these fimds.

The Company is registered by the Registre de Commerce ef des Socidiés and regulated by the Commission de
Surveillance du Secteur Fmancier ("CS5F™). Additionally, the Compary 15 subject 10 a minmmum net asset
requirement impesed by the Japanese Financial Services Authority, as a result of marketing fimds in Japan. The
Company complies with the principles =et out in the Association of the Luxembourg Fund Industry ("ALFI")
Code of Conduct as updated in June 2022,

There have not been any significant changes m the Company’s principal activitics in the period under review and
the diectors propose that the principal activities will continee dunng 2024, BlackRock Global Investiment
Series ("the fimd™) qualifics as an altemative imvestment fimd in accordance with Directive 201 1/61/EL of the
European Parliament and of the Council of 8 June 2011 on Alternative Investrment Fund Managers (“*AIFMD™)
and the Luxembourg law of 12 July 2013 on alternative imvestment fimd managers.

The Company & not the altemative investment fimd manager of the find and has appomted BlackRock Asset
Managernent Ireland Limited (the “AIFM”) to perform portfolio and nisk management functions for the fund
within the meaning of the AIFMD. The ATFM iz muthorizsed by the Central Bank of Ireland

2 Accounting policies

Summeary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates

The material accounting policics applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set oot below, These
policies have been consistently applied to all the vears presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with adopted IFRSs as approved by the EU and
umcler historical cost accounting rules, except for the revaluation of amy financial instruments held at fair value.
Historical cost is generalty based on the fair vatue of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

Consideration of dimate risk

As discussed in the Directors' report the Company reviews and manages climate related risks, In preparing the
financial statements, the directors have considered the mmplications of climate related nsk and have concluded
that there has been no material impact identified on the financial reporting judgements and estimate or on the
valustion of the Compamy's azsets and liabilities,

Page 15
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BlackRock Fund Management Company 5.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2023

2 Accounting policies {continued)

Golng concern
The Compamy's business activities, together with the Factors likely to affect its future development, performance
and position, are set ot in the Directors’ Report along with principal risks and uncentainties.

In assessing the going concern status, the directors have taken into account various factors, including the
financial position of the Company and i particular the significant net cazh position. The Compamy has, at the
date of this report, sufficient existing finances available for its estimated requirements for the next 12 months.
This, together with its proven ability to generate cash from operations, provides the directors with the
confidence that the Company 15 well placed to manage its business nsks successfilly.

Afler making appropriate enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expeciation that the Company has adequate
resources o continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, being at least 12 months from the date
of this report. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the geing concem basis in preparing the Directors’ Report and
financial staternents.

Changes in accounting standards

Mone of the standarids, interpretations and amendments issued by the Intermational Accounting Standards Board
{"IASBE") which are effective for the first time from 1 Jasuary 2023 have had a material effect on the Onacial
staterments.

Revenue recognition
Recognition

The Company eams revenue from the provision of services relating to mvestment mmnagement and
administrtion fees, and distribution fees, Revenue iz recognised upon transfer of contral of promised services to
customers, 1.e. when (or ag) a perfomance obligation 15 satisfied, in an amount that reflects consideration o
whach the Comparny expects to be entitlled in exchange for those services (the "tramsaction price”). The Comparny
enters into coptracts that can include multiple services and, in certain instances, may charge a "wnitary fee o
cover these services. Such fees are accounted for separately if they are determined to be distinet. Consideration
for the Company's services 5 generally in the foem of vanable consideration because the amount of fees is
subject to market conditions that are cutside the Companys influence. The Company includes variable
congideration as part of its trangaction price when it is highly probable that a significamt reversal will not occur,
i.e. when the associated uncertainty iz resolved. For some contracts with customers, the Compamny invoelves third
parties and related parties in providing services o the customer. Generally, the Company = deemed to be the
principal in these arrangements because the Company controls the promised services before they are transfemed
to custorners, and accordingly presents the revenue gross of related costs.
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2 Accounting policies {continued)

Fee arrangements
Fevenue from the provision of services comprizes:

*  Investment management and administration fees: Fees are recognised as the services are performed over
time. Such fees are pnimarily based on agreed-upon percentages of net asset value, AUM or committed
capital. These fees are affected by changes in net assel value, AUM or commibted capital, including market
appreciation or depreciation, foreign exchange tramslation and net inflows or outflows, Investment
management mnd administration fees for nvestment funds are shown net of fees waived pursuant io
contractual expense limitations of the fimds or volmtary waivers. Fees are generally invoiced monthly in
arTears

+  Dristribution fees: The Company accounts for fimd distribution services and shareholder servicing as distinct
services, separale from find management sarvices, because customers can benelit from each of the seraces
on their own and becanse the services are separately identifiable (that is, the nature of the promised services
i to tramsfer each zervice mdividually). The Company records disiribution fee revesue for serving as the
principal underariter andor distnibutor for certain mutual funds that it manages. Distribation fees are
generally based on net asset values and are recognised when the services are performed and the amount is
known, Consequently, a portion of the distribution fees recognised by the Company may be related to the
services performed in prior periods that met the recognition criteria in the current period. The Company
recognises ongomg shareholder servicing fee revenue when and as shareholder services are performed over
time, The Company contracts with third parties for various fund distribition services and shareholder
servicing o be performed on its behalfl These arimgerments are generally prced a5 a portion of the fee paid
to the Company by the fund or as an agreed-upon percentage of net asset value, The Company presents its
distnbudion fees and distribution and servicing costs incurred on a gross basis as it 15 deemed o be the
principal in such transactions.

Foreign currency transactions and balances
The tinancial staterments are presented in US dollar, which is also the fimctional currency of the Company.

Transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. Al each staterment of financial posilion date,
monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign cumencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the meome statement in the peried in
which they arise. Nog-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retrans lated. MNon-moenetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are ranslated
at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Exchange differences on non-monetary
iterns, measured at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss
in the incorne statement in the period in which they arise.

Tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable.

The cumrent income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date m the countries where the Compary operates and generates taxable
income.
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2 Accounting policies {continued)

Financial instruments
Recognition and devecogrifion

Financial assets and fmancial labilities are recognised on the trade date when the Company becomes party to
the contractual provisions.

Financial assefs are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows expire. or when the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. Financial labilities are derecognised when the
ohligation is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expired,

Clazsification and initial measremend of fnecial assets

All financial assets are initialty measured at fair value adjusted for transaction costs (where applicable), except
for trade receivables that do not contain a significant fmancing component wiich are measured atl transaction

price,

Financial assets are classified and subsequently mensured, based on business model and contragtual cash flow
characteristics, at: amortised cost; FVTPL.

All moome and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in the Income Statement are presented
within finance costs, finance mcome of nel gaing or losses on dervative financial indtneEnents, except for
impamment of rade receivables which 15 presented within administrative expenses.

Foreign exchange gains or losses arising on financial assets at amortised cost are presented in the Income
Statement within administrative expenses and disclosed in nete 5. For financial assets at FVTPL, the foreign
exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or lossez and is recogrized in the Income Staterment
within net gains/{losses) on dervative financial instnuments.

Subsequrend measirenent of firkmcial assets

Fimemelod csets e crmartised cost

Financial asscts are measured at amortised cost when their contractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest and they are held within a business moedel designed to hold the asset and collect s cazh
flows (and are not designated as FYTPLL

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method and mcome 15 recognised on this basis,

Finemcial asseis o jinir valve through profit or fogs

Financial assets that are held other than hold to collect’ or hiold to collect and sell’ are categorised a1t FVTPL.
Further, imespective of business model, financial assets whose contractual cash flows are not solely pavments of
principal and mterest are accounted for at FVTPL.

The Compary has not designated any amortised cost or far value through other comprehensive inceme
{("FVTOCI™) financial az=sets al FVTPL.

Imrperirment of fincercial assets
All debt-tvpe financial assetz not measured at FYTPL are assessed for anpainment at exch reporting date using a
forward-lookng approach by identify mg expected credit losses ("ECLs").

Impaimment provisions for rade receivables are recogmsed based on the sumplified apgroach using the hfetime
ECLs and the smgle loss-rate approach.
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2 Accounting policies {continued)

For other financial assets, where credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recogmition, twehve
month ECLs are recognised. For those where credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECLz are
recognised.

For assets held at smortised cost amy ECL 15 recogmised in the Income Statement with 3 corresponding
adjustment to the asset's camying value through 2 provision account, For assets held at FVTOCT, the loss is
recomnized in other comprehensive income and aceuminlated in the investment revaluation reserve.

Classification v measirement of finemclal ledilines
Fnancial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs
umless designated at FVTPL.

Subsequently, hinancial labilities are mezsured at amortized cost using the effective interest method except for
conlingent ¢onsideration acquired in a business combination, held for trading liabilities (incliding denvatives)
and financial liabilitics designated at FVTFL, which are at fair value with gains or losses recognised in the
Income Statermenl.

The Compary's financial liabilities at amortised cost are trade and other payables. The Company has not
designated amy financial liabilities st FYVTPL.

It the Ineome Statement interest-related charges are included within finance costs.

Foreign exchange gains o losses arising on financial hiabilities at amortised cost are presented in the Inceme
Statement within administrative expenses and disclosed in note 5,

Deriveriive fnencicd instrome s

The Comparny's denvative Tmancial instruments, forwards and foreign exchange are measured at FVTPL. In the
Statement of Financial Position, derivative financial instruments with positive fair values (unrealised gains) are
inchuded az aszetz and derivative financial mstrirmentz with negative fair valoes (unrealised losses) are included
as Liabalities.

The Company uses derivalive financial instnuments to ecomomically hedge nisk associsted with foreign
exchange movements and market price exposure with respect to certain seed investments, It is not the
Company’s policy to trade in derivative instruments and hedge accounting is not applied

Egeaigy Irestrionents

Equity instnuments issued by the Comgparmy are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. The
Company's ordinary shares are clazsified az equity instruments,
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3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncer tainty

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are described above, the directors are reguired to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the camyvimg amount of assets and habilities that are not
readily apparent from other sowrces. The cstimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are conzidered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

These estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoang basis. Revisions 1o accountng estimates are
recognised m the period in which the estimate is revised,

Iricome tees

The Compary is subject to income tax in nmmerous jurisdictions and judgement is required in determining the
provision for ta, During the ordinary course of business, there are many transactions for which the ultimate tag
determination 15 uncertain. IF it 1= nol probable that the tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
Company measures the effect of the uncertainty using either the most likely amount or expected value method,
depending on which method provides a better prediction of the resclution of uncertainty, To the extent that the
final tax outcome is different from the amounts that were recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
expense in the period m which such determination is made.

Full details are set out in note 7,

4  Revenue

2023 2022

& 0y S 000
Investment managernent and distribution fees 17,714 15548
Analysis by investment styvle 2023 2022

£ 000 £ 000
Cash managemenl 10,294 5613
Equity 370 472
Fixed income 2463 3313
Multi-azset 4,587 6,150

17,714 15,548

Contract assels

Contract azsets relate to the Comparn’s conditional rights to consideration for services, pomarily relating o
accried income for unbilled services. These are disclosed as accrued income innote 11,
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5 Operating profit
Amived at after charging

2023 2022
& 000 5000
Foreign exchange gains 7 £

6 Directors’ remuneration

The emoluments paid to directors of the Companry have been amited m compliance with Adicle 65(1)180(2) of
the Compamy Law.

7T Auditors’ remuneration

2023 2022
£ (i) % 000
Audit of the financial staterments , a3 .

8§ Income tax

The Comparry is subject Lo Luxembourg corporate income tax, municipal business tax and et wealth tax, The
charge allocated to the Company as parl of the fiscal unity to which it forms a part of, represanling corporate
income tay, municipal business tax and net wealth tax is shown below:

2023 2072
5 00 000
Current taxation
Lisembourg corporation tax o5 113
Luxembourg corporation tax adjustments in respect of prior periods {2} (1050
Total current income tax 93 10

The tax on profit before tax for the period is lower than (2022; lower than) the standard rate of corporation tax in
Luxembourg of 249496 (2023: 24, 8494,
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&  Income tax (continued)

2023 022

5 000 £ 000
Profit before tax 468 347
Corporation tax at standard rate 117 a5
Decrease i current tax from adustment in respect of prior peniods {3) {105
(Decreasey'merease mn curment tax from unrecognised foreign exchange
gaing or losses from tax staterment of financial position revaluation (211 P
Total tax charge o3 1

The Comparry is within the scope of the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development ("OECT")
Pillar Two mesdel rules (the Global Anti-Base Erosion Rules, or GloBE"). Pillar Two legislation was enacted in
Luxembourg, the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated and operates, and will come into effect
from 1st Jaswary 2024,

Under the Fillar Two legislation, a company may be liable to pay a top-up tax for the difference between its
GloBE effiective tax rate per jurisdiction and the 15% minmmum rate, This mey smpact the fisture tax charge for
the Company.

Since the Pillar Two legislation was not effective at the reporting date, the Company has no related current tax
exposure. The Company applics the exception to recogmising and disclosing information about deferred tax
assets and liabilities related to Pillar Twe income taxes, as provided in the amendments to IAS 12 issued in May
2023,

In 2024, the mpact of the Fillar Two legislation is cxpected to be immaterial. Due to the complexities in
applying the legislation and calculating GloBE income, the Company is continuing to assess the impact of the
Fillar Two mecome taxes legislation on its future financial periods,

2  Financial asseis
31 December 31 December

2023 2022
£ iy & 00
Nom-current financial assels
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss #51 842
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9 Financial assets (continued )

Meovement in non-current financial asseis

31 Decembrer 31 December
3 2022
5 i 00

Cost
At 1 January 2 231
Additions 39 11
At 31 December 881 242

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss represent the Compamy's holdings in the BlackRock Global
Irveztment Seriez Super Money Market Fund, a2 outlined in note 9. Additions reprezent reinvested distnbutions.

10 Interests in unconsolidated structured entities
The ALM of the Compamy &= ol 31 December 2023 was S3.4bm (2022: £2.4bn).

The Company manages investment fimds which are considered to be structured entities within the definition of
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’. Structured entities are not consolidated as the Company does
not have “control” as defined under TFRS 10 'Conzolidated Financial Statements. The Compary receives an
interest in these unconsolidated structured entities through the receipt of management fees. The ung onsolidated
sinuctured entities are constituted as open-ended and elosed-ended investment companies.

The unconsolidated structured entities have vanous investiment objectives and policies and are subject to the
terms and conditions of their respective offenng documentation. However, all unconsoladated structured entities
irvest capital primarily from third-party investors m a portfolio of assets in order to provide a retum to those
investors from capital appreciation of those assets, income from those assels, of both, Accordingly, they are
ausceptible to market price risk arising from uncemaintics about futre values of the assets they hold,

The unconsolidated struchired entities are financed through equity capital provided by investors, Additionally,
the Company holds an investment of 880, 96% units (2022: 842 0013) in BlackRock Global Investment Series

Super Money Market Fund with a value of 3381k (2022: $842k). Sec note 8 for details.

The fees received during the year to 31 December 2023, im relation to the above, were 317,714k (2022:
$15.548K). The carrving value on the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2023 15 34,550k (2022:
£3.378k), as represemted by accrued ncome,

Adzxinnim expasure o loss

The Comparmy’s maimuem exposure to loss associated with its interest in these unconselidated stroctured entitices
is limited to the carmying amounts shown above.

Financlal support

The Compary has not provided financial support to amy of its unconsolidated structured entities during the year,
and has no ¢comractual obligations or current intention of providing financial support in the future,
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10 Interests in unconsolidated structured entities {continued)

Cither infornuation

There are no differences to the economic or voling rghts ailaching to the equity held by the Company from
those hebd by other investors, There are no liquidity amrangements, guarantecs or other commitments that may

affect the fair value or risk of the Company’s interest in the unconzolidated structured entities,

11 Trade and other receivables

31 December

2023

3 000

Ameunts due from group companies 405
Accrued income 4,550

Prepayviments 34

31 Decemb er
2022

£ 0

180

3378

20

4,989

3578

The Company's exposure to credit and market nisks, including maturity analysis, relating to trade and other

receivables is disclosed innote 18

12 Share capital

Allptied, called up and fully paid shares

31 Devembyer
2023
Mo, (1) Z (p Mo, (M
Ordinary shares of $12.30 each 4 SO0 40

31 December

ALY

Sy

13 Other réserves

Legal reserve

Luxembourg companies are required to appropriate to the legal reserve a minmum of 5% of the annual net
income, after deducting any losses brought forward, until such reserve equals 1026 of subscribed capital

This reserve may not be distributed, inthe form of cash dividends or ctherwise, during the life of the Companmy.

No allocations were made in 2022 or 2023 as the maximum 350k had already been reached. This reserve is

included as other reserves in the statement of nancial postion.
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13 Other reserves (confinuwed)

Met wealth tax reserve

The members' general meeting has ratified the creation of a special net wealth tax reserve in order to reduce the
net wealth ta payable by the Company. This special reserve amounts to five times the envisaged net wealth tax
credit. This special net wealth tax reserve has to remain unavailable for distribution for five vears to take
advantage of the reduction in net wealth tax liability. This reserve is incleded as other reserves in the statement
of financial position.

During the vear, amounts totalling 98k (2022; $52k) were allocated to the net wealth tax reserve,

Additionally, amounts totalling $128k (2022 $413K) relating to amounts transfermed in prior vears were released
from the net wealth tax reserve to retained earnings.

The net wealth tax reserve at 31 December 2023 amounted to S$150k (2022 S180k).

14 Trade and other payvables

31 December 31 Decemb er
2023 2022
3 000 £ (1
Accrued expenses 85 ki
Amoants due to group companies 3,136 2504
3421 2633

All asmounts due to groug companees are unsecured, mterest free and repayable on demand.

The fair value of the trade and other payables classified as financial metruments is disclosed in note 16.

The Compary's exposure to market and hquadity nisks, mcluding matunity analvsiz, related to trade and other
pavables is disclosed in note 18,

15 Dividends

The directors propoese a final dividend of EMil (2022: SNl be made in respect of the financial vear ended 31
Drecember 2023,

16 Falr value measurement
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

Level 1 - fair value measurement derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) i active market prices for identical
aszets or liabilities.

Lewel 2 - fair value messurerent derived from inputs other than gueted prices included within level 1 that sre
ohservable for the asset or labality, cither directly (e as price) or indirecthy (i.c. derived from prices).
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16 Fair vahie measurement {continued)
Level 3 - fair value measurement derived from uncbservable inputs for the asset or liability,

The following tables provide the fair value measurement hicrarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities.

Assets measured af fair value
2023
Level 2 Tatal
5 00 = 000
Equaty mstrurments 81 BE1
Assets measured af Tair value
2022
Lavel 2 Tatal
& 000 % 0
Equaty mstrurments 842 842

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the vear.

17 Classification of fnancal and non-fAnancial assets and Gnancal and non-Goancial lakdlities

The classification of financial assets and financial liabilities by accounting categon=ation for the vear ending 31
December 2023 was ag follows:

Financial asseis  Financial assefs
& labilities at & liabilities at

anor tised cost FYTPL
- Mandatory - Mandstory
S iy 000
Assels
MNog-current assefs
Cther non-current financial assets - 881
Current ascels
Cazh and cash equivalents 1,068 -
Trade and other receivables 405 -
Total assels 1,473 881
Liabilities
Current Habilities
Trade and other payables 3421 -
Total liabilities ; 3.4:_1__ : -

Page 26

1741266



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

BlackRock Fund Management Company S5.A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2023

17 Classification of finandal and non-financial assets and Mnancial and mwon-fnancial liabilities
{con tinued)

The classification of financial azsets and financial liabilities by accounting caegornsation for the vear ending 31
December 2022 was as follows:

Financial assels  Financial assels
& llabilities at & liahilities at

armvortised cost FVIPL
- Mandatory - Mandatory
LI £ 0
Assels
MNom-current assels
Oither non-current financial assets = 842
Current assels
Cash and cash equivalents 1,355 -
Trade and other receivables 180 Z
Tuotal aszets 1,535 842
Liabillties
Current Habilithes
Trade and cther payables 2633 .
Total liabilities 2633 .

Financial instruments measured st fir value
For details of the fair value hierarchy and valuation methods and assumptions refer to note 16.

Fimancial instroments not measured at fair value

Due to their short-term nature, the canying value of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, and
trade and other pavables approximates their value after taking into account ECLs, Al the Statement of Financial
Position date, no allowance has been recognised for impainment of trade and other receivables as ECLs are
considered to be mmaterial.
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18 Financial risk review
This note presents mformation about the Comparmy s exposure to financial nsks and management of capital.

Credit risk and lmpalrment

Credit rizk anzes in relation to trade receivables, surplus cash held in bank accoumts or held on account with
other BlackRock group companies as part of normal treasury operations, and other asset investrments. The risk
of defanlt in relation to trade receivables arising from fee income receivables is considersd low and the
Compary minimises exposure to credit Ask with respect Lo trade receivables by actively pursuing settlement of
outstanding management fee invoices within the terms and conditions of the underyving agreement
Intercompany balances are managed centrally and agreed upon and settled on a regular basis.

Mest receivables that are overdue are nod considered o be impaired. A receivable will not be impaired unless
the expected cash flows, discounted at the onginal effective interest rate, are less than the carmving value, For
trade receivables, the Company adopts the simplified single loss rate approach to determine itz average
historical loss rate, building into this calculation fidure events and the likelihood that debt will be recovered in
the future, The resulting ECL rate is immaterial to the Company and no allowance has been recognised,

The Compary applies a practical expedient to its assessment of ECLs for intercompany receivables. Given the
lack of intercompany defaults in the past and future projected results, the Company does not propose
recopnizmg an ECL allowance on mmv of its intercompary positions. The ECL: on other receivables are
considered to be mmmaterial and no allowance has been recognised in the financial statements.,

The carrving amount of the financial aszets dizclesed innote 17 reprezents the Companmy's maximiEn exposure
to credit risk as no collateral or credit enfiane ements are hield.

The following tables swmnmarise the credit risk exposure of the Company based on S&P Global's credit ratings:

Al
5000
At 31 December 2023
Cash and cash equivalents 1.068
A-1
5 000
At 31 December 2022
Cash and cash equivalenis 1,355
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the Compamy's capital and'or eamings may be impacted by changes in foreign
exchange rates, interest rates and market prices,
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18 Financial risk review {continued)

Foreign exclange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises where the Company*s foreign cumency assets are not matched by labilities
denominated in the same currency. In addition, foreign exchange exposures arise en a ransactional basis largely
in relation to fee income which is denominated in non-functional currencies. The Company derives revenes
fromn mvestment management and distribution fees denominated in US dollar. Expenses are mainly denorminated
in Euro and a5 a consequence the Company's revenues may fluctuate as a result of Euro and US dollar exchange
TRV EtTIEnLS.,

Foreign curmency exposures are monitored regularly and minimized, Foreign currency exposures that arise m
relation to non-operational items are usually large in nature and are managed on a case-by case basia. Forelgn
currency exposures relating to intercompany pavables and receivables with other BlackRock group entitics are
managed wilising foreign exchange forward contracts.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis covers the financial mstruments at each of the staterment of financial position dates and
assumes changes in market vaniables, It should however be noted that due to the mherent uncertainty in the

world of finamcial markets the assumptions made may differ significantly from the actual omtcome particularly
as market rigks tend to be interdependent and are therefore unlikely to move in solation.

Eure exchange rates are assumed to increase or decrease by 20P4 2{Ps is the semsitivity rate used when
reporting  foreign curency nisk intermally to kev management persormel and represents management's
asseszment of a reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates,

If the Euro exchange rate increased by 209, profit and equity would decrease by 333k,

If the Euro exchange rale decreased by 202, profit and equity would morease by S49.

19 Related party transactions

The transactions with related parties thal occurred during the vear relsted to service charges with other entities
controlled by the ultimate parent undertaking,
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19 Related party transactions (contimied)

Income and receivables from related parties

Fellow
subsidiaries
2023 £ 000
Armnounts receivable from related party 354
Fellow
subsldiaries
2022 £ 000
Armounts receivable from related party 180
Expenditure with and payables to related parties
Fellow
subsidiaries
2023 £ 000
Cutsourced AIFM services and retrocessions 17.143
Other cxpenses @2
17,235
Ameunts payable to related party 3,336
Fellow
subsidiaries
2022 £ 000
Outsourced ATFM services and retrocessions 14,262
Other expenses 2
15,061
Amounts payable to related party . 2,503

There were no loans to sy related parties during the period.

20 Parent and ultinmie parent undertaking

The Company's immediste holding company is BlackRock Group Limited - Luxembourg Branch, The ultimate
parent company and controllng party 15 BlackRock, Inc., a company incorprorated in the State of Delaware in
the United States of Amenea The parent compaiy of the largest and smallest group that inchades the Comparne
and for which group accounts are prepared is BlackRock, Inc. Copies of the group financial statements are
available upon request from the Investor Relations website at www.blackrock.com or requests may be addressed
to Investor Relations at 50 Hodson Yards, Mew Yok, WY 10055, USA or by email at imvrel@blackrock.com.
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¢!
BlackRock Asset Management lreland Limited
2023 12 125,001 2,495
2024 31
199.61
1995 19
BlackRock, Inc.
(¢
2024 31 2,000
G
State Street Bank International GmbH, Luxembourg Branch
2024 3,864,860,334 6,561 7,599
2024 31
169.78
2009
10
4
J.P. Morgan SE, Luxembourg Branch
2024

41,865 1,078

Societas Europaea
Bundesanstalt fir Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht, BaFin
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€] BlackRock
Operations (Luxembourg) S.a r.|

2023 12 2,623,500 4,542

(6
BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited
2023 12 94,484,948 188 6,014
¢
2024 405
(8

2024 87,550
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€
2024 13,195
(10
2024 54,323
¢!
BlackRock Asset Management lreland Limited
(¢
G
State Street Bank International GmbH, Luxembourg Branch
(
( (a
(b
(
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4

J.P. Morgan SE, Luxembourg Branch

@ BlackRock
Operations (Luxembourg) S.a r.l

(6
BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited

BlackRock (Channel Islands)
Limited 1972 10

a7

C
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1993 1993
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2010 2010 12 17
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2016 2016 23
@
@
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2013 39
2011 2011 61
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1993
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2024 30 1,165 2010
9,691 8,500

Pan-
Selected Risks Investments
Commonwealth and European Investment Trust
1967 1968
United States Trust Investment Fund
186 (société d
3,320 2,600

4,215 3,800

https://ww.cssf. lu/fr/Document/principales-statistiques-concernant-les-opc-avril-2024/

1965 19
1983 20
1999
1.
1.1.
1988
1915
1.2.
1983 25
1988 3 30

1972 12 22

1998 22
30

1998 12 23

1983 25

85 611
1988 30
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2002 85 611
108 2002 2002 12 31
2002 2002 2004
2010
2014 91
2010 2010 12 24
2002
2010 2013 15
2016
2010
845
2010
2022 12 23
2021 12 15
2022 25
2010
2023 24 442
2023 21
1.3.
1991
2007 13 2007 1991
2007 2013
2017 2019
2019 2007
1.4.
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2001 107 2001
2003
13 1988 30
2007 13
2014 23
2010 2011 2012
2013
2014 23 2014 91
2016 10 2016 12
2019 1160 2021 21 2021 12
2021 12
2023
2009 65
2021 2261 2022 82
2023 21 2023
2007 2010 2016
19 1999
1991
2007 2013 15
11 238
2023
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( )
2016 2019 18 514
2019 16 2016
2023
2. 2010
2.1.
2.1.1. 2010
( )
2010
2013
2013
2.1.2.
2.1.3. 2010 2010
2010 41
2.1.4. 2010
2010
2.1.5. 2003 22 03 88 2002
2010
a) 20002 41 2010 41
20

b) 20
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c) 25
d) 2002 2010
2.1.6. 2010
fonds commun de placement
2010 1915
2.2.
2010
2023 2010 174 2002 129
2003 14
2.2.1.
2010 41
1134 1710 1779 1787 1984
2010
2010 12 2010

11
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2010

2010 41 52
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2019 11 27 2019 2162
2022
2022
25 2022
80
10
10
40
35
2013 34
20
11 15 10

20

196/266



12

13

14

100

10

10

11

30

2010

35

181

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

35

35

20

30

10

197/266



15

16

25

2010

10

11

16

10

12

10

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

11

2010

10

10 13 15

10 13

13

198/266



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10 11
13
17
2010 50 17 2010
10
10
() 15
18
19
20
85
15
2010 41
2010 41 42

21

199/266



2002

2002 11 27

2007
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2008
e 2008
339 2008 11 26
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11 512
08 356
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e 2008 11 26
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08 380

10
2010
02 77 2021 18 2025
24 856
85 611 EEC
2007 19 2007 16
2008
2008 19 08
2008
2008
18 698
08 380
08 339
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2010 19
2010 43 2010 12 22

200/266



EDINETOOOO

O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2010 2010 44 2010 12 22
No.10 05
° No.10
2011 30 11 512
11 512 18 698
°
2012 12 540
° 2014
22 14 591
e 2014 30 14 592
2014 937 13 559 2012
2012 832
14 592
2015 2365
° 10
049 2014 12 14 598
° 2015 27
15 609
° 2015 12 15 627
° 2015 12 28 15 631
° 2010 |
2016 10 11 16 644 16 644 2018
18 697
° 2018
18 698
e 2018 10
2019 30 19 718
°
2019 15 19 719
o 2019 12 20
19 733
° 19 2020 10
20 740
e 2004 11 12
2010
17 650 2020 20 744
° 2020 12
18 20 764
° 12 2021 13

21 770
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° 35
36 1952 2021 30 21 779
° 2021 12 22
21 788
° 2021 12 22
21 789 23 839
°
2021 12 22 21 790
° 2019 1156
34 45 1272 2019 20
No 345 2013 ( ) No 346 2013
No 1286 2014 2022 31 22 795
° 2022 22
22 805
° 2022 22 22 806
2019 02
°
2022 12 22 810
° 2022 16 22 811
°
2022 10 27
22 822 22 822
2024 26
° 28
2023 24 23 831
° 2023 16 23 833
° 2023 16
23 835
° 2023 11 23 844
°
2023 12 23 846
°
2024 02 77 2024 29 24 856
2008 2010
2010 2023
2010
2024

2011 30
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2010
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1991 21 91 75
05 177 18 697 22 811
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2010 15
2010 16
2010 16 15
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() 2010 125

2010 89
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X
X
X
2.3.1.1.3. 1915 420 17
2.3.1.1.4. 1915 420 19 420 23
25
2.3.1.2. 2010
2010
2.3.1.2.1.
2.3.1.2.2.
2.3.1.1.2.
2.3.1.3.
2010 129 130
2010 87
2013 58
2013
2011 61
2010 87

tribunal administratif
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2008 12 19
75

2.6.1.2. taxe d"abonnement
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0.05
2010 174 0.01
2017 14
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2010
2010 174 2010 41
2003 14
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2010 154 réviseur d =~
entreprisesagréé 2016 23 62

Institut des Réviseurs d ”Entreprises
réviseur d~

entreprises agréé

réviseurd ~ entreprises agréé

taxe d"abonnement

Administration de I ~Enregistrement et des Domaines et de

la TVA 2010 177
2020 852
2010 175
2007 174 68 2016 46
2017 1131
2019 20 2019 1238
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To the Unitholders of

BlackRock Global Investment Series

35A, Avenue J.F. Kennedy

L-1855 Luxembourg

Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BlackRock Global Investment Series (the““Fund””)
and of each of its Portfolios, which comprise the statement of net assets and the statement
of investments and other net assets as at 31 January 2023 and the statement of operations
and changes in net assets for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Fund and each of its Portfolios as at 31 January 2023, and of the
results of their operations and changes in their net assets for the year then ended in
accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession
(Law of 23 July 2016) and with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs) as adopted for
Luxembourg by the““Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier””(CSSF). Our
responsibilities under the Law of 23 July 2016 and ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the
CSSF are further described in the““Responsibilities of the Independent Auditor for the Audit
of the Financial Statements””section of our report. We are also independent of the Fund in
accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, including
International Independence Standards, issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Other information
The Board of Directors of the Fund®s Management Company is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information stated in the annual report but

does not include the financial statements and our report of the Independent Auditor thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report this fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company for the
Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Luxembourg legal and
regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company is responsible for assessing the Fund®s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company either
intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Responsibilities of the Independent Auditor for the Audit of the Financial Statements

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue a report of the Independent Auditor that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the
CSSF will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

254/266



EDINETOIOICIC)
Oo00000000000000000000000000000(E31087)
OOo00000000000000000

As part of an audit in accordance with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted

for Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund"s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors of the
Fund®s Management Company.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Fund"s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
report of the Independent Auditor to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report of the Independent Auditor.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going
concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de révision agréé

Virginie NG Wing Lit - Boulot, Réviseur d"entreprises agréé
Partner

25 May 2023
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To the Unitholders of

BlackRock Global Investment Series

35A, Avenue J.F. Kennedy

L-1855 Luxembourg

Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®"S REPORT

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BlackRock Global Investment Series (the““Fund””)
and of each of its Portfolios, which comprise the statement of net assets and the statement
of investments and other net assets as at 31 January 2024 and the statement of operations
and changes in net assets for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Fund and each of its Portfolios as at 31 January 2024, and of the
results of their operations and changes in their net assets for the year then ended in
accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession
(Law of 23 July 2016) and with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs) as adopted for
Luxembourg by the““Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier””(CSSF). Our
responsibilities under the Law of 23 July 2016 and ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the
CSSF are further described in the““Responsibilities of the Independent Auditor for the Audit
of the Financial Statements””section of our report. We are also independent of the Fund in
accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, including
International Independence Standards, issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Other information
The Board of Directors of the Fund®s Management Company is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information stated in the annual report but

does not include the financial statements and our Independent Auditor®s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report this fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company for the Financial
Statements

The Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory
requirements relating to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements, and for
such internal control as the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Fund®s Management Company is
responsible for assessing the Fund"s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company either intends to liquidate the Fund or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Responsibilities of the Independent Auditor for the Audit of the Financial Statements

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an Independent Auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with I1SAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with 1SAs as adopted for

Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors of the Fund"s
Management Company .
Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Fund"s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
Independent Auditor®s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our Independent Auditor®s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de révision agréé

Virginie NG Wing Lit - Boulot, Réviseur d"entreprises agréé
Partner

23 April 2024
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To the sole Shareholder of

BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

REPORT OF THE REVISEUR D"ENTREPRISES AGREE

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A. (the
““Company””), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, the
income statement, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2023, and of its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as
adopted by the European Union.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession
(Law of 23 July 2016) and with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs) as adopted for
Luxembourg by the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (CSSF). Our
responsibilities under the Law of 23 July 2016 and ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the
CSSF are further described in the ““Responsibilities of the réviseur d"entreprises agréé for
the Audit of the Financial Statements”” section of our report. We are also independent of
the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants, including International Independence Standards, issued by the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements, and have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Other information

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information stated in the annual report but does not include the financial
statements and our réviseur d"entreprises agréé thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report this fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as adopted by the European
Union, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the Company"s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Responsibilities of the réviseur d"entreprises agréé for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a
report of the réviseur d"entreprises agréé that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with the Law of 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for
Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company®"s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors® use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company"s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our report of the réviseur d"entreprises
agréé to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our Independent Auditor®"s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Director™s report is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de Révision Agréé

Sandrine Muller, Réviseur d"entreprises agréé
Partner

25 June 2024
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